
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 13, 2016 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for Period Ending August 31, 2016   

2. Fiscal Status - Fund 24 (Merrill Festival Grounds) and TID No. 3   

8. General agenda items: 

1. Employee Years of Service Recognition   

 Karen E. Vecchio, 10 years (Library)   

9. Health and Safety Committee: 

1. Consider application from the Merrill Historical Society, 100 East Third Street, 
for a temporary Class "B" license to sell fermented malt beverages and wine 
at 100 East Third Street on Saturday, November 5, 2016, as part of a trivia 
contest.  The Health and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

2. Request for prorated license fee refund from Sawmill Brewing Co. Inc., as a 
result of surrendering their Class "B" (beer) and "Class B" (liquor) license for 
Sawmill Brewing Co. Inc., 1100 East Tenth Street.  The amount of the 
prorated refund would be $500. The Health and Safety Committee 
recommends approval.  

3. Request from Merrill Youth Hockey Association for an extension of premises 
to sell alcoholic beverages in a designated area outside the Smith Center, 
1100 Marc Drive, on Saturday, September 17th, 2016, in conjunction with a 
"Pork in the Park" event. Wristbands will be used to help ensure compliance.  
Alderwoman Ball is bringing this request directly to the Common Council.  

4. Consider application from St. Francis Xavier Catholic Church, 1708 East 
Tenth Street, for a temporary Class "B" license to sell fermented malt 
beverages and wine at 1708 East Tenth Street (inside and on grounds) on 
Sunday, September 18, 2016, as part of a fall festival.  Alderman Russell is 
bringing this application directly to the Common Council.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday September 13, 2016 

10. Redevelopment Authority: 

1. Consider TIF-funded interest subsidy program to facilitate expanded use of 
Community Development Revolving Loan Program.  The Redevelopment 
Authority recommends approval.  

11. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Airport Commission, 
Board of Canvassers, Board of Public Works, Committee of the Whole, 
Health and Safety Committee, Library Board, Personnel and Finance 
Committee, Redevelopment Authority and Tourism Commission.   

12. Mayor's Appointments: 

 Rose Akey to the Merrill Enrichment Center Committee, term to expire May 1, 
2017.   

 Nancy Kwiesielewicz to the Housing Authority, term to expire November 18, 
2018.   

 Gary Schwartz to the Airport Commission, term to expire October 1, 2022   

13. Ordinances: 

1. Consider recommendation(s) from September 13, 2016 Committee of the 
Whole Meeting: Ordinance amending Chapter 113, Article VI, Section 113-
168, related to Off –Street Parking Restrictions in Residential Areas.   

2. Consider recommendation(s) from September 13, 2016 Committee of the 
Whole Meeting: Ordinance amending Chapter 8, Article XII, Section 8-330, to 
add Mobile Food Vendors.   

3. Consider recommendation(s) from September 13, 2016 Committee of the 
Whole Meeting: Ordinance amending Chapter 16, Section 1, to add licensing 
fees for Mobile Food Vendors.   

4. Consider recommendation(s) from September 13, 2016 Committee of the 
Whole Meeting: Ordinance related to Mobile Food Vendors in Parks 
(commercial enterprise approval required).   

5. Consider recommendations(s) from September 13, 2016 Committee of the 
Whole Meeting: Ordinance creating the Festival Grounds Committee.   

14. Resolutions: 

1. Resolution on fee schedule for grass and weed mowing duties performed by 
the Street Department.  The Board of Public Works recommends approval.  

2. Resolution on fee schedule for snow and ice removal duties performed by the 
Street Department.  The Board of Public Works recommends approval.  

3. Resolution authorizing City Administrator Johnson to sign documents to 
facilitate and complete transfer of the cell tower easement located at 401 S. 
Kyes Street to TCO IV, LLC.  The Board of Public Works recommends 
approval.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday September 13, 2016 

4. A Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of $2,145,000 General 
Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2016A.   

5. A Resolution awarding the sale of $4,185,000 General Obligation Corporate 
Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B.   

6. A Resolution authorizing the issuance of $1,080,000 General Obligation 
Promissory Notes and the issuance and sale of $1,080,000 Taxable Note 
Anticipation Note in anticipation thereof (Series 2016C).   

15. Mayor's Communications 

16. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
0

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
1

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
2

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



6.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
3

Attachment: Council Minutes - Aug 2016  (1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Revenue & Expense Report  (1933 : Revenue and Expense Report)



7.
2.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Fiscal Status - Fund 24 & TID No. 3  (1934 : Fiscal Status - Fund 24 and TID 3)



7.
2.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Fiscal Status - Fund 24 & TID No. 3  (1934 : Fiscal Status - Fund 24 and TID 3)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



7.2.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
&

 T
ID

 N
o

. 3
  (

19
34

 :
 F

is
ca

l S
ta

tu
s 

- 
F

u
n

d
 2

4 
an

d
 T

ID
 3

)



9.
1.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
8

Attachment: Picnic License-Merrill Historical Soc-Nov 5, 2016  (1870 : Picnic License for Merrill Historical



9.
2.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5
9

Attachment: Sawmill Refund Request  (1871 : Request for prorated license fee refund from Sawmill



9.
3.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
0

Attachment: Hockey Association request and map  (1894 : Premises extension for Hockey Association -



9.
3.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
1

Attachment: Hockey Association request and map  (1894 : Premises extension for Hockey Association -



9.
4.

a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
2

Attachment: St. Francis Fall Festival Picnic License Application  (1914 : Picnic License for St. Francis -



10
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
3

Attachment: TIF-Funded Interest Subsidy  (1937 : TIF funded interest subsidy program)



10
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
4

Attachment: TIF-Funded Interest Subsidy  (1937 : TIF funded interest subsidy program)



10
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
5

Attachment: TIF-Funded Interest Subsidy  (1937 : TIF funded interest subsidy program)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
4

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
5

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
3

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
4

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
5

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
6

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
7

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
8

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8
9

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
0

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
1

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



11
.1

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
2

Attachment: Committee Reports  (1887 : Place reports on file)



12
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
3

Attachment: Mayors Appointment List  (1895 : Appoint Rose Akey to the Enrichment Center Committee)



12
.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9
4

Attachment: Schwartz appointment  (1898 : Appoint Gary Schwartz to Airport Commission)



 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 113, Article VI, Section 113-168 of the Code of Ordinances for 
the City of Merrill is amended as follows: 

• Sec. 113-168 – Off-street Parking Restrictions in Residential Areas.  

(a) Where permitted. Unless the district regulations provide otherwise, off-street vehicle 
parking is permitted in a residential district or any district where residential is the primary use 
in the following location:  
 

(1) Parking shall be allowed on any improved yard area(s).  Improved yard 
areas is defined as covered with rotten granite, asphalt, cement or 
other similar material approved by the Building Inspector. 

(2) Notwithstanding the above, no parking shall be allowed on any 
unimproved yard area, which is adjacent to a public street. 

(3) Complaints will be initiated by a written nuisance complaint received 
from adjacent property owners(s), district Alderperson, and/or Building, 
Zoning and Property Inspector. 

(1) An improved driveway of asphalt, concrete, gravel, or rotten granite not to 
exceed 30 feet in width extending from the right-of-way to an attached or 
detached accessory building with vehicles parked not nearer than five feet to a 
front property line or three feet to a side lot line.  

(2) An improved pad adjacent to an accessory building not to exceed 12 feet in 
width and a length not to exceed that of the accessory building.  

(3) In no case shall the improved parking or driveway area exceed ten percent of 
the total lot area. Improved parking and driveway areas in existence as of the 
date of this ordinance are considered existing nonconforming 

.  

AN ORDINANCE: By Board of Public Works 
Re: Amending Chapter 113,  Article VI, Section 

113-168 Off –Street Parking Restrictions in 
Residential Areas 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 o
ff

-s
tr

ee
t 

p
ar

ki
n

g
 in

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 a
re

as
  (

19
40

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 o
ff

-s
tr

ee
t 

p
ar

ki
n

g
)



 
Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 

portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 

 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
  

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 o
ff

-s
tr

ee
t 

p
ar

ki
n

g
 in

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 a
re

as
  (

19
40

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 o
ff

-s
tr

ee
t 

p
ar

ki
n

g
)



 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 8, Article XII, Section 8-330 of the Code of Ordinances for the 
City of Merrill is created to add the following: 

Sec. 8-330 Definitions.      

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
  
Mobile Food Vehicle – a commercially manufactured, self-contained, mobile food unit including 
trucks, carts and trailers, in which food is prepared or processed and from which food is sold or 
dispensed to the ultimate consumer. 
 
Mobile Food Vehicle Vendor – the owner of a mobile food vehicle or pushcart; hereafter 
referred to as “vendor”. 
 
Pushcart – a non-self-propelled wheeled cart, specifically designed and used for keeping, 
storing, or warming food or beverage for sale by a mobile food vehicle vendor, which may be 
moved by one person without the assistance of a motor. 
 
Sec. 8-331 License Required 
 

a. It shall be unlawful for any person to do any of the following within a public right-of-way 
or on public property in the City of Merrill without first having obtained a State of 
Wisconsin Mobile Restaurant/Mobile Service Base Permit and a valid food vending 
license as prescribed in this article: 
(1) Operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart; 
(2) Serve, sell, or distribute food from a mobile food vehicle or pushcart; 
(3) Cook, wrap, package, or portion food in a mobile food vehicle or pushcart for service, 

sale, or distribution. 

AN ORDINANCE: By Health and Safety Committee 
Re: Amending Chapter 8, Article XII, Section 8-330 

to add Mobile Food Vendors 

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
19

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 a

d
d

in
g

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
)



 
b. No person shall park, stop, or operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart, on or within a 

public right-of-way or on public property in the City of Merrill, without the appropriate 
permits/licenses, nor shall any mobile food vehicle vendor permit any person to park, 
stop or operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart in a location adjacent to or within a 
one-hundred foot radius of the nearest edge of any building or section of a building 
comprising a licensed food establishment, excluding any patio, awning, or temporary 
enclosure attached thereto, the kitchen of which is open for serving food to patrons.  
This requirement may be waived if the most recent application for a mobile food vending 
license was submitted together with the written consent of the proprietor of the adjacent 
licensed food establishment. 

c. All vendors will abide by all parking and traffic laws, ordinances, statutes, rules, and 
regulations at all times, except that a mobile food vehicle that is of such a length that it 
occupies all or a portion of two marked parking spaces may park in such spaces so long 
as it abides by all other parking restrictions, including required payments in both parking 
meters, when applicable. 

d. Mobile food vehicles are not permitted on public sidewalks. 
e. Vendors are not allowed in City parking lots or on public property, except as part of an 

approved special event or upon approval by the Health and Safety Committee..  
Vendors are not allowed in City parks except where prior approval has been granted by 
the Parks and Recreation Commission. 

f. The City shall not regulate Vendors in private parking lots so long as the property owner 
has granted permission and all required health licenses are valid.  However, the host 
parking lot must remain in compliance with the zoning ordinance including off-street 
parking requirements for the host lot, and the mobile food vehicle or cart shall not block 
required drive aisles. 

g.  In residential areas (such as areas not adjacent to City parks), vendors are not 
permitted to park and stay in one location; vendors must keep moving and make only 
short stops to sell products, except as part of an approved special event or upon 
approval by the Health and Safety Committee. 

h. A person with a valid driver’s license of such a classification to allow the operation of the 
mobile food vehicle shall be with the vehicle at all times that any activity is taking place 
in the mobile food vehicle.  The vendor is liable for any violations or this subsection. 

i. No person will park, stop, or operate a mobile food vehicle, nor will any mobile food 
vehicle vendor permit any person to park, stop or operate a mobile food vehicle in a 
location within 500 feet of the boundary line of any property upon which a fair, farmer’s 
market, festival, carnival, circus, special event, or civic event licensed or sanctioned by 
the City is occurring, except when the vendor has obtained a permit or otherwise 
properly obtained permission to do so. 

j. Appropriate permits or other properly obtained permission must be obtained to park, 
stop, or operate a mobile food vehicle or push cart in a location within 500 feet of the 
boundary line of any property upon which a fair, farmer’s market, festival, carnival, 
circus, special event, or civic event licensed or sanctioned by the City is occurring. 

k. All mobile food vehicle vendors are prohibited from connecting to light poles, utility poles, 
or any public source of electricity, water or sewer, or to any planter or tree or other public 
amenity. 

l. All signage must be permanently affixed to the mobile food vehicle or pushcart.  No 
accessory signage will be placed outside or around the mobile food vehicle or pushcart. 

m. Mobile food vehicle or pushcart vending hours on public right-of-way are from 8:00 a.m. 
to 10:00 p.m. (Sunday through Thursday) and from 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. (Friday 
and Saturday).  Mobile food vehicle must be closed, the area cleaned and the mobile 

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
19

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 a

d
d

in
g

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
)



 
food vehicle removed by the time specified.  Mobile food vehicle vending hours are not 
restricted on private property locations. 

n. Nothing in this article shall be deemed to supersede or repeal any ordinance, National 
Fire Protection Association Codes and Standards, or administrative regulation relating to 
noise, park closing hours, or parking, except as specifically provided in the article.  
Vendors will take every precaution to ensure that their operations do not materially affect 
the peace and welfare of the general public nor cause any unreasonably loud, disturbing 
and unnecessary noise or any noise of such character, intensity or duration as to be 
detrimental to the life or health of any individual of which is in the disturbance of public 
peace and welfare. 

 
Sec. 8-332 License Application; Regulation 
 

a. Any person desiring to operate a mobile food vehicle or pushcart will make written 
application for a mobile food vending licenses to the City Clerk’s office.  The application 
for such license shall be on forms provided by the City Clerk’s office and will include all 
of the following: 
(1) The name, signature, and address of each applicant and of each member or officer 

of a corporate applicant. 
(2) A description, including make, model, VIN number, and licenses plate, of the mobile 

food vehicle. 
(3) A valid copy of all necessary licenses, permits or certificates required by the County 

of Lincoln, the State of Wisconsin, or any subsidiary enforcement agencies or 
departments thereof, including but not limited to valid proof of registration for the 
vehicle and driver’s licenses for all operators and documentation of the necessary 
approvals from the Lincoln County Health Department for operation as a mobile food 
vendor. 

(3)(4) A copy of general liability insurance with a $1,000,000 limit, with the City of 
Merrill listed as additional insured. 

(4)(5) Any additional information deemed necessary by the City Clerk to determine if 
issuance of a mobile food vending license to a particular applicant would be in the 
best interest of the public. 

b. Upon receipt of an application for a mobile food vending license, the clerk may conduct a 
background check and may refer to the Chief of Police or his or her designee who may 
make and complete an investigation of the statements made in such registration.  Any 
such investigation will be completed as soon as practicable.  The City Clerk may refuse 
to register the applicant if any of the following is determined: 

(1) The application contains any material omission or materially inaccurate 
statements. 

(2) The applicant was convicted of a crime, statutory violation or ordinance violation 
within the last five (5) years, the nature of which is directly related the applicant 
fitness to engage in direct selling; or 

(3) The applicant failed to comply with any requirement of §8-302(a)(4). 
c. Each mobile food vending license will expire on March 31st of each year. 
d. A mobile food vending license is not transferable from person to person 
e. A mobile food vending license is only valid for one vehicle only and is not transferable 
f. The mobile food vending license will be permanently and prominently affixed to the 

mobile food vehicle. 
g. Licenses, late fee and renewal fees shall be paid in accordance with the fee schedule as 

established by the Common Council, from time to time, and as indicated on the schedule 
of licenses and fees appearing in Chapter 16 of this Code. 

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
19

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 a

d
d

in
g

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
)



 
 
 
Sec. 8-333  Suspension and Revocation 
 
A mobile food vending licenses may be suspended or revoked by the City Clerk, or the Chief of 
Police, or the Fire Chief, if the license holder made any material omission or materially 
inaccurate statements in the license application, or if the license holder violates any provisions 
of this article, if there are noise complaints related to the mobile food vehicle or the operation 
thereof, of if the license holder is convicted of any crime or ordinance or statutory violation 
directly related to the licensed activity.  Notice of suspension or revocation will be personally 
served on the applicant and will include a statement of the act(s) upon which the denial is 
based.  Appeals are available as set out in §8-302(h). 
 
Sec. 8-334  Violations and Penalties. 
 

a. Any person violating any provisions of this article shall be subject to the forfeitures 
and penalties contained in §2-19 of this Code.  Each day of violation shall constitute 
a separate offense. 

b. The Police Department, Fire Department, and the Department of Public Works shall 
have concurrent authority to remove or cause the removal of any vending equipment 
or merchandise found on the street, sidewalk, terrace or other vending location in 
violation of any regulations established pursuant hereto.  In addition to any forfeiture, 
the violator shall be liable for any removal, towing and storage charges incurred by 
either department. 

 
Section 2  Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder of 
this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that this ordinance 
would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been included or any illegal 
application had not been made. 

Section 3  Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
  

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 M

o
b

ile
 F

o
o

d
 V

en
d

o
rs

  (
19

41
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 a

d
d

in
g

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
)



 

 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 16, Section 1of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Merrill is 
amended as follows: 

CHAPTER 8 BUSINESS LICENSING AND REGULATIONS 

8-19(b)(2)  Cigarette and tobacco products retailer license application fee $100.00 

8-47(c)(1)  Transient merchant registration application fee $50.00 

8-
112(b)(2)  

Application fee for application to operate public vehicles, taxicabs or automobiles 
for hire upon city streets  

$15.00 per 
vehicle 

8-112(c)  License fee for operation of public vehicles, taxicabs or automobiles for hire upon 
city streets for one cab licensed  $35.00 

 
For each additional cab licensed $10.00 

8-117  Taxicab driver's license annual fee $15.00 

8-138(a)  Permit to operate amusement arcade—application fee $25.00 

8-183  License for cleaning, dyeing or pressing of garments and items of all kinds—annual 
fee  $20.00 

8-210(a)  Sexually oriented business license application and investigation fee $100.00 

AN ORDINANCE: By Health & Safety Committee 
Re: Amending Chapter 16, Section 1 to add 

licensing fees for Mobile Food Vendors 

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 li

ce
n

si
n

g
 f

ee
s 

fo
r 

M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
  (

19
43

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 li

ce
n

si
n

g
 f

ee
s 

fo
r 

M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
)

https://www2.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH8BULIRE
https://www2.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH8BULIRE_ARTIIITRME_S8-47RE
https://www2.municode.com/library/wi/merrill/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTICOOR_CH8BULIRE_ARTVTA_S8-112RE


 

 

8-210(b)  Sexually oriented business license fee $150.00 

8-210(c)  Sexually oriented business employee application, investigation and license fee $50.00 

8-284  Investigation fee per individual $20.00 

8-
286(g)(4)  Failure to report daily penalty (per day) $10.00 

8-291  Annual license regulated per Wis. Stats. § 134.71(11)(a) $210.00 

8-291(b)  Pawn tracking system $2.00 

8-302(g) Mobile food vehicle or pushcart license fee $200.00 

 
  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 

 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki,  
Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
  

13.3.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 li

ce
n

si
n

g
 f

ee
s 

fo
r 

M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
  (

19
43

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 t
o

 a
d

d
 li

ce
n

si
n

g
 f

ee
s 

fo
r 

M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
)



 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 28, Article I, Section 28-1(c)(25) of the Code of Ordinances for 
the City of Merrill is amended as follows:    

Commercial enterprise.  
No person shall sell, or offer for sale, any article, thing, privilege or service in any park without prior 

written permission from the parks and recreation commission  
Mobile food vehicle(s) or pushcart(s) shall not operate in any park, unless the appropriate licensing 

and/or agreements are in place.  

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct 
and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. It is the legislative intent of the Common Council that 
this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal provision had not been 
included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and 
resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect 
from and after its passage and publication. 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk  

AN ORDINANCE: By Park and Recreation 
Commission 

Re: Amending Chapter 28, Article I, Section 28-
1(c)(25) Commercial Enterprise Approval  

13.4.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
 in

 P
ar

ks
  (

19
45

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 M
o

b
ile

 F
o

o
d

 V
en

d
o

rs
 in

 P
ar

ks
)



 

 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016- 
Introduced: 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-___(number to be determined by 
Municipal Code) of the Code of Ordinances for the City of Merrill is created as 
follows: 

Sec. 2-___(number to be determined by Municipal Code) – Merrill Festival Grounds 
Committee. 
 

 
1. Purpose.  The Festival Grounds Committee (herein after known as The 

Committee) is the Merrill governmental entity that manages the Merrill 
Festival Grounds.  The purpose of the Committee is to oversee the marketing, 
development, and maintenance of the Festival Grounds, and to increase 
Festival Grounds usage for the good of the community and surrounding area. 
The Committee shall consist of City of Merrill officials, user group 
representatives, and citizens of Lincoln County who will work with the City of 
Merrill and the Common Council for this purpose. 
 

2. Committee Powers and Responsibilities.   
 
A. Responsibilities 

(1) The Committee is responsible for the day-to-day management and 
maintenance of the grounds and its facilities, and may hire a Facility 
Director for that purpose, providing funds are available, as well as 
assigning functions to City staff. 

(2) The Committee shall be authorized or empowered to authorize 
payment of reasonable compensation for services rendered and to 

AN ORDINANCE: By Committee of the Whole 
Re: Amending Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-

___(number to be determined by Municipal 
Code) Merrill Festival Grounds Committee 

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 t

h
e 

F
es

ti
va

l G
ro

u
n

d
s 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
 (

19
47

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 F

es
ti

va
l G

ro
u

n
d

s 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



 
make payments and distributions which support the purposes set forth 
in Article I and Article II. 

(3) The Committee shall plan and implement Festival Grounds building 
projects. This includes the construction of new buildings and facilities, 
major landscaping projects, etc.  The Committee will seek approval 
when required from the Merrill Common Council. 

B. Membership 
(1) The Committee shall have no members other than those appointed by 

the Mayor and confirmed by the Common Council. 
(2) The Committee will consist of 12 voting members. City of Merrill 

representatives shall not be associated with the groups that have 
representation on the Board.  Representatives that sit on the Board 
from each of the groups shall be elected or appointed by those groups.  
City of Merrill area representatives shall not be alderpersons.  The 
breakdown of members shall be: 
a. Merrill Common Council Member (2) 
b. Merrill City Administrator (1) 
c. City Engineer/Public Works Director (1) 
d. Merrill Park & Recreation Department Director (1) 
e. Enrichment Center Director (1) 
f. Rodeo Association representative (1) 
g. Fair Association representative (1) 
h. Food Vendor group representative (1) 
i. 4-H Leaders Association representative (1) 
j. At Large City of Merrill area representative (2) 
k. Mayor (ex-officio) 

C. Terms 
(1) Members of the Committee, with the exception of the Common Council 

members, City Administrator, City Engineer, Park & Recreation 
Director, and Enrichment Center Director will serve in staggered three 
year terms so that one-third of these six (6) directors will be chosen 
each year.  The Mayor shall appoint new members, with confirmation 
by the Common Council.   

(2) For the first Committee constituted, two (2) members will agree to 
serve a one year term, two (2) members will agree to serve a two year 
term, and the remaining two (2) members will agree to serve a three 
year term. No member, with the exception of the Common Council 
representatives, the City Administrator, and the Parks & Recreation 
Director, shall serve more than three consecutive full terms.   The 
Merrill Mayor will appoint two (2) aldermen to serve on the Board of 
Directors.  These members shall be voting members, will be appointed 
every two years to match the City Council election cycle, and may 
serve in officer positions if approved by a majority of a quorum present 
of The Committee. 
 
 

D. Officers 

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 t

h
e 

F
es

ti
va

l G
ro

u
n

d
s 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
 (

19
47

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 F

es
ti

va
l G

ro
u

n
d

s 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



 
A Committee Chair and Vice –Chair shall be elected by majority vote from 
the membership of the Committee. 

 
E. Additions and Replacements 

Additions or replacements to the Committee will be made by the Mayor, 
with confirmation by the Common Council. 

F. Resignation 
A Committee member may resign at any time by providing written notice 
to the Mayor.  Resignations shall be effective upon the date specified 
within the written notice. 

G. Per Diem and Travel 
Members of The Committee shall be paid a per diem for their services 
rendered to the Organization per City policy.  Reimbursement of expenses 
for travel by a Committee member while on Committee business shall be 
determined on a case-by-case basis by the entire Committee. 

H. Minutes 
Minutes of each meeting shall be recorded and distributed by the City 
Clerk. 

 
3. Committee Meetings 

 
A. Regular Meetings 

The Committee shall meet monthly, and at the call of the Committee 
Chair, if deemed necessary.  A Committee member with two unexcused 
absences over the course of a calendar year may be removed from the 
Committee by a majority vote of the members during a regular meeting 
with a quorum present. Meetings may be cancelled by the Committee 
Chair if no business is to come before the Committee. 

B. Special Meetings 
The Committee shall meet monthly, and at the call of the Committee 
Chair, if deemed necessary.  A Committee member with two unexcused 
absences over the course of a calendar year may be removed from the 
Committee by a majority vote of the members during a regular meeting 
with a quorum present. Meetings may be cancelled by the Committee 
Chair if no business is to come before the Committee. 
 
 

C. Quorum 
A quorum for regular and special meetings consists of seven (7) voting 
Committee Members being present. 

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 t

h
e 

F
es

ti
va

l G
ro

u
n

d
s 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
 (

19
47

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 F

es
ti

va
l G

ro
u

n
d

s 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



 
D. Meeting Notifications. 

Committee meetings shall be posted and held in accordance with 
Wisconsin open meeting statutes. 

4. Operating Budget 
The Organization operating budget shall be completed annually and approved 
by the Committee by a majority vote of a quorum present no later than 
November 1 of the year prior to the budget year. Final budget approval shall 
be made by the Common Council. 

5. Staff 
Should resources become available, the Committee reserves the right to 
approve by a majority vote the process of hiring a facility director for the 
program and any other staff that is deemed necessary and can be funded, 
with Common Council approval. 

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase 
or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding 
shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. It is the 
legislative intent of the Common Council that this ordinance would have been 
adopted if such illegal provision had not been included or any illegal 
application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall 
take effect from and after its passage and publication. 

Moved by: 
 

Adopted: 
 

Approved: 
 

Published: 
 

Approved: 
 
 
William R. Bialecki, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 
  

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 t

h
e 

F
es

ti
va

l G
ro

u
n

d
s 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
 (

19
47

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 c
re

at
in

g
 F

es
ti

va
l G

ro
u

n
d

s 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR DUTIES  
PERFORMED BY THE STREET DEPARTMENT  

FOR GRASS AND WEED MOWING 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill Code of Ordinances provides for the 
abatement of a nuisance where the property owner, occupant or person in 
charge of certain property fails to cut his lawn, grass or weeds; and, 

WHEREAS, after written notice is given, the City shall abate the nuisance 
and the cost thereof shall be assessed to the property owner as a special charge; 
and,  

WHEREAS, it is necessary, from time to time, to review the charges for 
such abatement; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of September, 2016, that the 
following nuisance abatement fees for lawn mowing and or weeds are approved 
as follows: 

LAWN MOWING AND/OR WEEDS:  
 
FIRST OCCURRENCE:  
 
$300.00100.00 for the first hour or part thereof 
and $50.0020.00 for every additional 15 minutes or portion thereof after 
the first hour, plus applicable taxes. 
 
SECOND AND SUBSEQUENT OCCURENCES IN A CALENDAR YEAR:  
 
$500.00 for the first hour or part thereof and $50.00 for every additional 15 
minutes or portion thereof after the first hour, plus applicable taxes. 

Recommended by: Board of Public 
Works 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
  

14.1.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 f
ee

s 
fo

r 
g

ra
ss

 a
n

d
 w

ee
d

s 
 (

18
20

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 g
ra

ss
 a

n
d

 w
ee

d
s 

fe
es

)



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR DUTIES  
PERFORMED BY THE STREET DEPARTMENT  

FOR SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill Code of Ordinances provides for the 
abatement of a nuisance where the property owner, occupant or person in 
charge of certain property fails to remove snow and ice from the sidewalk; and, 

WHEREAS, after written notice is given, the City shall abate the nuisance 
and the cost thereof shall be assessed to the property owner as a special charge; 
and,  

WHEREAS, it is necessary, from time to time, to review the charges for 
such abatement; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of September, 2016, that the 
following nuisance abatement fees for snow and ice removal are approved as 
follows: 

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL:  
 
FIRST OCCURRENCE: 
 
$300.00100.00 for the first hour or part thereof and $50.0020.00 for every 
additional 15 minutes or portion thereof after the first hour. 
 
SECOND AND SUBSEQUENT OCCURENCES IN A CALENDAR YEAR:  
 
$500.00 for the first hour or part thereof and $50.00 for every additional 15 
minutes or portion thereof after the first hour, plus applicable taxes. 

Recommended by: Board of Public 
Works 
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 
 

14.2.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 f
ee

s 
fo

r 
sn

o
w

 a
n

d
 ic

e 
 (

18
21

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 s
n

o
w

 a
n

d
 ic

e 
re

m
o

va
l f

ee
s)



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.  

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY ADMINISTRATOR DAVE JOHNSON TO 
SIGN DOCUMENTS TO FACILITIATE AND COMPLETE TRANSFER OF THE 

CELL TOWER EASEMENT LOCATED AT 401 SOUTH KYES STREET, 
MERRILL, WISCONSIN TO TCO IV, LLC   

 
WHEREAS, TowerCo has offered, and the City has accepted the offer for 

$261,000 for a perpetual exclusive easement for a leased area in the vicinity of 
401 S. Kyes Street; and, 

 
WHEREAS, in addition to authorizing the sale of that easement, it is now 

necessary that the City of Merrill appoint a signor for all documents relative to the 
above referenced transaction; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of September, 2016, that 
City Administrator Dave Johnson is hereby authorized to sign any and all 
documents required to transfer the easement to TowerCo or its assigns. 

 

Recommended by: Board of Public 
Works  
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 

14.3.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
 C

el
l T

o
w

er
 0

8 
20

16
-T

N
H

  (
18

82
 :

 C
el

l T
o

w
er

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 -

 S
. K

ye
s 

S
tr

ee
t)



14
.4

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
11

Attachment: Council Borrowing Memo-2016-09-13  (1935 : Resolution on GOPN Series 2016A)



 

QB\41415589.1  

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 
$2,145,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2016A 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, 
desirable and in the best interest of the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City") 
to raise funds for public purposes, including paying the cost of acquiring vehicles, equipment and 
constructing building improvements and street improvements (collectively, the "Project"), and 
refinancing the General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2004, dated February 3, 
2004 (the "Refunded Obligations") (hereinafter the refinancing of the Refunded Obligations shall 
be referred to as the "Refunding"); 

WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 
the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 
Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes; 

WHEREAS, the Common Council deems it to be necessary, desirable and in the best 
interest of the City to refund the Refunded Obligations for the purpose of achieving debt service 
cost savings; 

WHEREAS, cities are authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 
Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes (the "Notes") for such 
public purposes and to refinance their outstanding obligations;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution adopted August 10, 2016, the Common Council 
directed Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers") to take the steps necessary to sell Notes; 

WHEREAS, Ehlers, in consultation with the officials of the City, prepared a Notice of 
Sale (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) 
setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Notes and indicating that the Notes 
would be offered for public sale on September 13, 2016; 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) caused a form of notice of the 
sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Notice of Sale to be distributed to potential 
bidders offering the Notes for public sale on September 13, 2016; 

WHEREAS, the City has duly received bids for the Notes as described on the Bid 
Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 
Tabulation"); and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 
the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 
requirements set forth in the Notice of Sale and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the 
City.  Ehlers has recommended that the City accept the Proposal.  A copy of said Proposal 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -2- 
QB\41415589.1  

submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated 
herein by this reference.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 

Section 1A.  Ratification of the Notice of Sale and Offering Materials.  The Common 
Council of the City hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Notes set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto as and for the details of the Notes.  The Notice of Sale and any other offering 
materials prepared and circulated by Ehlers are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.  All 
actions taken by officers of the City and Ehlers in connection with the preparation and 
distribution of the Notice of Sale, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and 
approved in all respects. 

Section 1B.  Authorization and Award of the Notes.  For the purpose of paying the cost 
of the Project and the Refunding, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.12(12), 
Wisconsin Statutes, the principal sum of TWO MILLION ONE HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,145,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Proposal.  The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Notes for the 
sum set forth on the Proposal, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a true 
interest cost as set forth on the Proposal is hereby accepted.  The Mayor and City Clerk or other 
appropriate officers of the City are authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of the 
Proposal on behalf of the City.  The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be retained by the 
City Treasurer until the closing of the note issue, and any good faith deposits submitted by 
unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned.  The Notes shall bear interest at the rates set 
forth on the Proposal. 

Section 2.  Terms of the Notes.  The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation 
Promissory Notes, Series 2016A"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of 
$2,145,000; shall be dated October 11, 2016; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates 
per annum and mature on October 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth 
on the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year 
commencing on April 1, 2017.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of 
twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board.  The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Notes is set forth 
on the Debt Service Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the "Schedule"). 

Section 2A.  Designation of Maturities.  For purposes of State law, the Notes of this issue 
which mature first are designated as being issued to refund the Refunded Obligations in the order 
in which the debt evidenced by said obligations were incurred and the remaining balance of the 
Notes is designated to pay the cost of the Project. 

Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Notes maturing on October 1, 2025 and 
thereafter shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on October 1, 
2024 or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes shall be redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -3- 
QB\41415589.1  

part, from maturities selected by the City and within each maturity, by lot, at the principal 
amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.  [If the Proposal specifies that 
any of the Notes are subject to mandatory redemption, the terms of such mandatory redemption 
are set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP and incorporated herein by this reference.  
Upon the optional redemption of any of the Notes subject to mandatory redemption, the principal 
amount of such Notes so redeemed shall be credited against the mandatory redemption payments 
established in Exhibit MRP for such Notes in such manner as the City shall direct.] 

Section 4.  Form of the Notes.  The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be 
executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 

(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 
principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 
resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the 
taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2016 through 2025 for 
the payments due in the years 2017 through 2026 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule.   

(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 
Notes remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 
obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 
the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City 
and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other 
taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax 
roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund 
Account created below. 

(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 
from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due, 
the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall 
be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 
 

Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 
 

(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 
treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct 
from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 
issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 
fund. 
 

Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 
designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for $2,145,000 General Obligation Promissory 
Notes, Series 2016A, dated October 11, 2016" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -4- 
QB\41415589.1  

account shall be maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or 
otherwise extinguished.  The City Treasurer shall deposit in the Debt Service Fund Account (i) 
all accrued interest received by the City at the time of delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) 
any premium not used for the Refunding which may be received by the City above the par value 
of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the taxes herein levied and 
any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of and interest on the 
Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay principal of and 
interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified 
below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes. 
 

(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 
Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes 
canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 
Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 
invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 
payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 
and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to 
reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing 
the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted 
municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted 
Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  
Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury 
Regulations (the "Regulations"). 
 

(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Notes have been paid in full and 
canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 
Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the 
Common Council directs otherwise. 
 

Section 7.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 
the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium not used for the Refunding and accrued 
interest which must be paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund 
Account created above) shall be deposited into a special fund separate and distinct from all other 
funds of the City and disbursed solely for the purposes for which borrowed or for the payment of 
the principal of and the interest on the Notes.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be 
temporarily invested in Permitted Investments.  Any monies, including any income from 
Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purposes for which the 
Notes have been issued have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed 
and which obviously thereafter cannot be needed for such purposes shall be deposited in the 
Debt Service Fund Account. 

Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 
Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 
the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 
Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -5- 
QB\41415589.1  

certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the date 
of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are not 
"arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 

Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The City represents and covenants 
that the projects financed by the Notes and by the Refunded Obligations and the ownership, 
management and use of the projects will not cause the Notes or the Refunded Obligations to be 
"private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.  The City further 
covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the extent necessary to maintain 
the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes including, if applicable, the rebate requirements 
of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City further covenants that it will not take any action, omit to 
take any action or permit the taking or omission of any action within its control (including, 
without limitation, making or permitting any use of the proceeds of the Notes) if taking, 
permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of the Notes to be an arbitrage bond 
or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or would otherwise cause interest on 
the Notes to be included in the gross income of the recipients thereof for federal income tax 
purposes.  The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with the responsibility of issuing 
the Notes shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City certifying that the City can and 
covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code and Regulations. 
 

(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 
restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 
Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent 
consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 
to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 
 

Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Notes are hereby 
designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 
relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 
purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations. 
 

Section 11.  Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services.  The Notes shall be 
issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 
with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser 
upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 
delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Notes 
may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City 
has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures 
appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 
whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 
signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 
had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 
directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and 
acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City 
hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and 
contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -6- 
QB\41415589.1  

legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  
Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Notes is hereby 
ratified and approved in all respects. 

Section 12.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 
Notes shall be paid by Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, Minnesota, which is hereby 
appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.10(2), 
Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent").  The Fiscal Agency Agreement between the City and 
the Fiscal Agent shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit F and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes.  The City shall cause books 
for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in 
whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 
thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made 
only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 
and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 
the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 
transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 
transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the 
Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration 
shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer. 

The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 

Section 14.  Record Date.  The fifteenth day of each calendar month next preceding each 
interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date").  Payment of 
interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 
Notes as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 
Date. 

Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 
order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 
Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously executed on behalf of the City and on file in 
the City Clerk's office. 

Section 16.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The City authorizes the Purchaser to 
forward the amount of the proceeds of the Notes allocable to the payment of issuance expenses 
to KleinBank, Chaska, Minnesota at Closing for further distribution as directed by Ehlers. 

 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -7- 
QB\41415589.1  

Section 17.  Official Statement.  The Common Council hereby approves the Preliminary 
Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as 
"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All 
actions taken by officers of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary 
Official Statement and any addenda to it are hereby ratified and approved.  In connection with 
the Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the Preliminary Official Statement and any 
addenda.  The City Clerk shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any 
addenda to be distributed to the Purchaser. 

Section 18.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants 
and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 
information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in 
accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Notes or 
by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the 
Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of 
the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the 
Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes). 

To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the 
City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the 
City's Undertaking. 

Section 19.  Redemption of the Refunded Obligations.  The Refunded Obligations are 
hereby called for prior payment and redemption on December 1, 2016 at a price of par plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

The City hereby directs the City Clerk to work with Ehlers to cause timely notice of 
redemption, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit G and incorporated herein by 
this reference (the "Notice"), to be provided at the times, to the parties and in the manner set 
forth on the Notice.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of the City to 
effectuate the redemption of the Refunded Obligations are hereby ratified and approved. 

Section 20.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 
proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 
statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 
Notes in the Record Book. 

Section 21.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 
insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 
agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 
acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 
of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 
of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -8- 
QB\41415589.1  

notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 
the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein. 

Section 22.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 
rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 
hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 
event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

 
 

 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

EXHIBIT A 

Notice of Sale 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

EXHIBIT B 
 

Bid Tabulation 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

EXHIBIT C 
 

Winning Bid 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

EXHIBIT D-1 

Pricing Summary 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

(See Attached)

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

EXHIBIT D-2 

Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution.  

(See Attached)

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

[EXHIBIT MRP 

Mandatory Redemption Provision 

The Notes due on October 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject 
to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 
price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 
in amounts sufficient to redeem on October 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 
specified below: 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity)] 

 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

 
EXHIBIT E 

 
(Form of Note) 

 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 

LINCOLN COUNTY 
NO. R-___ CITY OF MERRILL $_______ 

GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2016A  
 
 

MATURITY DATE:  ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE:    CUSIP: 

October 1, _____ October 11, 2016 ____% ______ 

DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($__________) 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 
hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name 
(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified 
above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per 
annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior 
to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year 
commencing on April 1, 2017 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  Both the 
principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the 
United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the 
Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Bond 
Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, Minnesota (the "Fiscal Agent") or any successor thereto at 
the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding the semi-annual 
interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Note is payable as to principal upon 
presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 

For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the 
levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are hereby 
irrevocably pledged. 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -2- 
QB\41415589.1  

 

This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $2,145,000, all 
of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and redemption 
provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, 
for public purposes including paying the cost of acquiring vehicles, equipment, constructing 
building improvements and refunding certain outstanding obligations of the City, all as 
authorized by resolutions of the Common Council duly adopted by said governing body at 
meetings held on August 10, 2016 and September 13, 2016.  Said resolutions are recorded in the 
official minutes of the Common Council for said dates.   

The Notes maturing on October 1, 2025 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity, at the option of the City, on October 1, 2024 or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes are 
redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City and within 
each maturity, by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

[The Notes maturing in the years _______, _______ and ______ are subject to 
mandatory redemption by lot as provided in the resolution authorizing the Notes at the 
redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption and without premium.] 

In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in 
book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 
registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 
transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 
thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 
Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed 
will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:  the 
designation, date and maturities of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the 
date of redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to 
have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Notes shall 
cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 
available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 
that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be 
outstanding. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 
exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 
existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the 
City, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 
limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 
irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, 
when and as payable. 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -3- 
QB\41415589.1  

This Note has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt 
obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

This Note is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the 
office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 
depository for the Notes, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Note to 
the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together with 
a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new fully 
registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new depository in 
exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the City for any tax, 
fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such registration.  The 
Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the Record Date, (ii) 
during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of notice of any 
proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after such Note has 
been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and consider the Depository in 
whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving 
payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and interest due hereon 
and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Notes are issuable solely as negotiable, fully-
registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 

 This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 
Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent. 
 
 No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 
impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 
default hereunder. 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -4- 
QB\41415589.1  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, by its 
governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 
or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 

CITY OF MERRILL, 
LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

By: ______________________________ 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 

By: ______________________________ 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -5- 
QB\41415589.1  

 
 

 

Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned resolution 
of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin. 
 

BOND TRUST SERVICES    
  CORPORATION, 

ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
 
 
 

By____________________________ 
        Authorized Signatory 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

 -6- 
QB\41415589.1  

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 

the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on 
the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:  _____________________ 

Signature Guaranteed: 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 
(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 
or Securities Firm) 

NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 
name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 
appears upon the face of the within Note in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

____________________________ 
(Authorized Officer)

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

EXHIBIT F 
 

Fiscal Agency Agreement 
 
 

 
(See Attached) 

 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

 

FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 11th day of October, 2016 between the City of 

Merrill, Wisconsin ("Municipality"), and Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, 
Minnesota, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Bank" or "Fiscal Agent"), a 
corporation duly organized and existing as a limited purpose trust company under the laws of the 
State of Minnesota, Section 48A.03 and authorized by the Department of Financial Institutions 
of the State of Wisconsin to operate in Wisconsin pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 223.12. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Municipality has duly authorized the issuance of its $2,145,000 General 
Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2016A, dated October 11, 2016 (the "Obligations") 
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes and the resolutions adopted by 
the Municipality on August 10, 2016 and September 13, 2016 (collectively, the "Resolution"); 
and  

WHEREAS, the Municipality is issuing the Obligations in registered form pursuant to 
Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable Treasury 
Regulations promulgated thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Resolution and Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes the 
Municipality has authorized the appointment of the Fiscal Agent as agent for the Municipality 
for any or all of the following responsibilities:  payment of principal and interest on, registering, 
transferring and authenticating the Obligations as well as other applicable responsibilities 
permitted by Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipality and the Fiscal Agent hereby agree as follows: 

I.  APPOINTMENT 

The Fiscal Agent is hereby appointed agent for the Municipality with respect to the 
Obligations for the purpose of performing such of the responsibilities stated in Section 67.10(2), 
Wisconsin Statutes, as are delegated herein or as may be otherwise specifically delegated in 
writing to the Fiscal Agent by the Municipality. 

II.  INVESTMENT RESPONSIBILITY 

The Fiscal Agent shall not be under any obligation to invest funds held for the payment 
of interest or principal on the Obligations. 

III.  PAYMENTS 

At least one business day before each interest payment date (commencing with the 
interest payment date of April 1, 2017 and continuing thereafter until the principal of and interest 
on the Obligations should have been fully paid or prepaid in accordance with their terms) the

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

-2- 
  QB\41415589.1 

Municipality shall pay to the Fiscal Agent, in good funds immediately available to the Fiscal 
Agent on the interest payment date, a sum equal to the amount payable as principal of, premium, 
if any, and interest on the Obligations on such interest payment date.  Said interest and/or 
principal payment dates and amounts are outlined on Schedule A which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

IV.  CANCELLATION 

In every case of the surrender of any Obligation for the purpose of payment, the Fiscal 
Agent shall cancel and destroy the same and deliver to the Municipality a certificate regarding 
such cancellation.  The Fiscal Agent shall be permitted to microfilm or otherwise photocopy and 
record said Obligations. 

V.  REGISTRATION BOOK 

The Fiscal Agent shall maintain in the name of the Municipality a Registration Book 
containing the names and addresses of all owners of the Obligations and the following 
information as to each Obligation:  its number, date, purpose, amount, rate of interest and when 
payable.  The Fiscal Agent shall keep confidential said information in accordance with 
applicable banking and governmental regulations. 

VI.  INTEREST PAYMENT 

Payment of each installment of interest on each Obligation shall be made to the registered 
owner of such Obligation whose name shall appear on the Registration Book at the close of 
business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding the interest payment date and shall 
be paid by check or draft of the Fiscal Agent mailed to such registered owner at his address as it 
appears in such Registration Book or at such other address as may be furnished in writing by 
such registered owner to the Fiscal Agent. 

VII.  PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 

(a) Principal Payments.  Principal shall be paid to the registered owner of an 
Obligation upon surrender of the Obligation on or after its maturity or redemption date. 

 Term Bonds [The Obligations due on October 1, 20__ and October 1, 20__ (the "Term 
Bonds") are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot at a redemption price equal 
to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption, from deposits which are required to be made in amounts sufficient to 
redeem on October 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds specified on the 
attached Schedule MRP.  

 The Municipality hereby directs and the Fiscal Agent hereby agrees to select the Term 
Bonds to be redeemed on the dates set forth above and to give notice of such redemption as set 
forth in substantially the form attached hereto as Schedule B by registered or certified mail, 
facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic transmission or in any other 
manner required by The Depository Trust Company at least thirty (30) days but not more than 
sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Obligation 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

-3- 
  QB\41415589.1 

selected to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address shown on the registration books as of 
the Record Date. 

The Municipality, in accordance with Section III hereof, shall make payments sufficient 
for the Fiscal Agent to pay the amounts due on the Term Bonds subject to mandatory 
redemption.] 

(b) Official Notice of Redemption.  In the event the Municipality exercises its option 
to redeem any of the Obligations, the Municipality shall, at least 35 days prior to the redemption 
date, direct the Fiscal Agent to give official notice of such redemption by sending an official 
notice thereof by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, 
electronic transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company at 
least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered 
owner of each Obligation to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown in the 
Registration Book.  Such official notice of redemption shall be dated and shall state (i) the 
redemption date and price; (ii) an identification of the Obligations to be redeemed, including the 
date of original issue of the Obligations; (iii) that on the redemption date the redemption price 
will become due and payable upon each such Obligation or portion thereof called for 
redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and (iv) the 
place where such Obligations are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, which 
place of payment shall be the principal office of the Fiscal Agent.  Term Bonds [Official notice 
of the redemption of Obligations subject to mandatory redemption shall be given in the same 
manner.] 

(c) Additional Notice of Redemption.  In addition to the official notice of redemption 
provided in (b) above, further notice of any redemption shall be given by the Fiscal Agent on 
behalf of the Municipality to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and The Depository 
Trust Company of New York, New York but neither a defect in this additional notice nor any 
failure to give all or any portion of such additional notice shall in any manner defeat the 
effectiveness of a call for redemption. 

Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall be sent at least 30 days before 
the redemption date by registered or certified mail, overnight delivery service, facsimile 
transmission or email transmission and shall contain the information required above for an 
official notice of redemption. 

(d) Redemption of Obligations.  The Obligations to be redeemed Term Bonds [at the 

option of the Municipality] shall be selected by the Municipality and, within any maturity, shall 

be selected by lot by the Depository described in Section VIII hereof.  Term Bonds [Obligations 

subject to mandatory redemption shall be selected as described in (a) above.]  The Obligations or 
portions of Obligations to be redeemed shall, on the redemption dates, become due and payable 
at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date such Obligations or 
portions of Obligations shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such Obligations for 
redemption in accordance with the official notice of redemption, such Obligations shall be paid 
by the Fiscal Agent at the redemption price.  Installments of interest due on or prior to the 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

-4- 
  QB\41415589.1 

redemption date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest.  Upon surrender for 
any partial redemption of any Obligation, there shall be prepared for the registered owner a new 
Obligation or Obligations of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal.  Each 
check or other transfer of funds issued in payment of the redemption price of Obligations being 
redeemed shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Obligations being 
redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

VIII.  UTILIZATION OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY 

The Depository Trust Company's Book-Entry-Only System is to be utilized for the 
Obligations.  The Fiscal Agent, as agent for the Municipality, agrees to comply with the 
provisions of The Depository Trust Company's Operational Arrangements, as they may be 
amended from time to time referenced in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations executed 
by the Municipality.  The provisions of the Operational Arrangements and this Section VIII 
supersede and control any and all representations in this Agreement. 

IX.  OBLIGATION TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 

The Fiscal Agent shall transfer Obligations upon presentation of a written assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or by such owner's duly authorized representative.  Upon 
such a transfer, new registered Obligation(s) of the same maturity, in authorized denomination or 
denominations in the same aggregate principal amount for each maturity shall be issued to the 
transferee in exchange therefor, and the name of such transferee shall be entered as the new 
registered owner in the Registration Book.  No Obligation may be registered to bearer.  The 
Fiscal Agent may exchange Obligations of the issue for a like aggregate principal amount of 
Obligations of the same maturity in authorized whole multiples of $5,000. 

The Obligations shall be numbered R-1 and upward.  Upon any transfer or exchange, the 
Obligation or Obligations issued shall bear the next highest consecutive unused number or 
numbers. 

The Municipality shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the appropriate officers of the 
Municipality are authorized to execute any new Obligation or Obligations necessary to effect any 
such transfer. 

X.  AUTHENTICATION, IF REQUIRED 

The Fiscal Agent shall sign and date the Certificate of Authentication, if any, on each 
Obligation on the date of delivery, transfer or exchange of such Obligation.  The Fiscal Agent 
shall distribute and/or retain for safekeeping the Obligations in accordance with the direction of 
the registered owners thereof. 

XI.  STATEMENTS 

The Fiscal Agent shall furnish the Municipality with an accounting of interest and funds 
upon reasonable request. 

 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

-5- 
  QB\41415589.1 

XII.  FEES 

The Municipality agrees to pay the Fiscal Agent fees for its services hereunder in the 
amounts set forth on Schedule [B/C] hereto. 

XIII.  MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Nonpresentment of Checks.  In the event the check or draft mailed by the Fiscal 
Agent to the registered owner is not presented for payment within five years of its date, then the 
monies representing such nonpayment shall be returned to the Municipality or to such board, 
officer or body as may then be entitled by law to receive the same together with the name of the 
registered owner of the Obligation and the last mailing address of record and the Fiscal Agent 
shall no longer be responsible for the same. 

(b) Resignation and Removal; Successor Fiscal Agent.  (i) Fiscal Agent may at any 
time resign by giving not less than 60 days written notice to Municipality.  Upon receiving such 
notice of resignation, Municipality shall promptly appoint a successor fiscal agent by an 
instrument in writing executed by order of its governing body.  If no successor fiscal agent shall 
have been so appointed and have accepted appointment within 60 days after such notice of 
resignation, the resigning fiscal agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the 
appointment of a successor fiscal agent.  Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as 
it may deem proper and prescribes, appoint a successor fiscal agent.  The resignation of the fiscal 
agent shall take effect only upon appointment of a successor fiscal agent and such successor 
fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment. 

(ii)  The Fiscal Agent may also be removed by the Municipality at any time upon 
not less than 60 days' written notice.  Such removal shall take effect upon the appointment of a 
successor fiscal agent and such successor fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment. 

(iii)  Any successor fiscal agent shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to 
Municipality and to its predecessor fiscal agent an instrument accepting such appointment 
hereunder, and thereupon the resignation or removal of the predecessor fiscal agent shall become 
effective and such successor fiscal agent, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall 
become vested with all the rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor, with 
like effect as if originally named as fiscal agent herein; but nevertheless, on written request of 
Municipality, or on the request of the successor, the fiscal agent ceasing to act shall execute and 
deliver an instrument transferring to such successor fiscal agent, all the rights, powers, and trusts 
of the fiscal agent so ceasing to act.  Upon the request of any such successor fiscal agent, 
Municipality shall execute any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting 
in and confirming to such successor fiscal agent all such rights, powers and duties.  Any 
predecessor fiscal agent shall pay over to its successor fiscal agent any funds of the Municipality. 

(iv)  Any corporation, association or agency into which the Fiscal Agent may be 
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its 
corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or 
association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it 
is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor fiscal agent under this Agreement and 
vested with all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities and privileges and all other matters as 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

-6- 
  QB\41415589.1 

was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or 
conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding. 

(v)  Any successor fiscal agent shall be qualified pursuant to Sec. 67.10(2), 
Wisconsin Statutes, as amended. 

(c) Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the payment in 
full of all of the principal and interest on the Obligations to the registered owners of the 
Obligations or (ii) five years after (aa) the last principal payment on the Obligations is due 
(whether by maturity or earlier redemption) or (bb) the Municipality's responsibilities for 
payment of the Obligations are fully discharged, whichever is later.  The parties realize that any 
funds hereunder as shall remain upon termination shall, except as may otherwise by law, be 
turned over to the Municipality after deduction of any unpaid fees and disbursements of Fiscal 
Agent or, if required by law, to such officer, board or body as may then be entitled by law to 
receive the same.  Termination of this Agreement shall not, of itself, have any effect on 
Municipality's obligation to pay the outstanding Obligations in full in accordance with the terms 
thereof. 

 
 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

-7- 
  QB\41415589.1 

(d)  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement, being duly 
authorized so to do, each in the manner most appropriate to it, on the date first above written. 

CITY OF MERRILL, LINCOLN 
COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

By _________________________ 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 

_________________________ 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

BOND TRUST SERVICES 
CORPORATION, ROSEVILLE, 
MINNESOTA 
  Fiscal Agent 

(SEAL) By__________________________ 
Paying Agent Administrator 

Attest________________________ 
Paying Agent Administrator 

 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

SCHEDULE A 

Debt Service Schedule 
$2,145,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2016A 

of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
dated October 11, 2016 

(SEE ATTACHED) 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

[SCHEDULE MRP 

Mandatory Redemption Provision 

The Obligations due on October 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are 
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a 
redemption price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed 
plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are 
required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on October 1 of each year the respective 
amount of Term Bonds specified below: 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______(maturity)]

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

QB\41415589.1  

[SCHEDULE B 

NOTICE OF MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION* 

City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2016A 

Dated October 11, 2016 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a portion of the Notes of the above-referenced issue 
which mature on October 1, 20___ shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on 
October 1 of the year set forth below, in the amount set forth below, at a redemption price equal 
to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. 

Redemption Date Principal Amount  CUSIP Number 

 October 1, ____ $_______ ____________ 

 Such portion of the Notes will cease to bear interest on the redemption date set forth 
above. 

BY THE ORDER OF THE 
COMMON COUNCIL 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 

Dated: __________________ 
 
 
 

                     
* To be provided by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic 

transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust 
Company, Attn:  Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not 
less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the call date.  At least thirty (30) days prior to 
the call date notice shall also be filed electronically with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through 

the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.] 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


 

QB\41415589.1  

SCHEDULE [B/C] 
 
 
 

(SEE ATTACHED) 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

  QB\41415589.1 
 

 
EXHIBIT G 

NOTICE OF CALL* 

Regarding 

CITY OF MERRILL 
LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2004 
DATED FEBRUARY 3, 2004 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the governing documents of 

the above captioned Bonds (the "Bonds "), that the herein described Bonds are called for redemption prior to 
their maturity and will be redeemed on December 1, 2016 (the "Redemption Date").  Redemption will be made 
by payment of the principal amount of each such Bond, together with interest accrued to the Redemption Date.  
From and after December 1, 2016, interest on the Bonds shall cease to accrue and any lien or interest in or to 
any pledge of security or collateral for the Bonds hereby called shall also cease and become null on the 
Redemption Date. 

Maturity Date Amount Rate CUSIP Price 

12/01/18 $150,000 4.20% 590230MW5* 100.00% 
12/01/20 160,000 4.40    590230MY1* 100.00 

 
 Payment of Bonds called for redemption will be made upon presentation and surrender of such Bonds.  
In the case of any registered Bonds to be redeemed in part only, upon presentation of such Bond for 
redemption, there will be issued in lieu of the unredeemed principal portion a new bond(s) equal to such 
unredeemed portion. 

Called Bonds should be presented as follows: 

  IF BY REGISTERED     IF BY HAND OR 
  OR CERTIFIED MAIL    OVERNIGHT MAIL 

 Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A.  Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. 
  Corporate Trust Operations   Northstar East Building 
  Corporate Trust Services   Corporate Trust Operations 
  12th Floor     MAC N9303-121 
  MAC N9303-121    608 2nd Avenue South 
  P.O. Box 1517      6th & Marquette Avenue 
  Minneapolis, MN 55480   Minneapolis, MN  55479 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)



 

  QB\41415589.1 
 

IF IN PERSON 

Northstar East Building 
Corporate Trust Services 
12th Floor 
608 2nd Avenue South 
Minneapolis, MN 

Registered or certified insured mail is suggested when submitting Bonds for payment.  Wells Fargo 
policy does not allow Corporate Trust Services to hold any securities longer than 30 days.  Please do not 
submit your securities more than 30 days in advance. 

When inquiring about this redemption, please have the Bond number available.  Please inform the 
customer service representative of the CUSIP number(s) of the affected Bonds.  Customer Service can be 
reached at 612-667-9764 or Toll Free 800-344-5128. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE 

Under Section 3406(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code the Registrar may be obligated to withhold a 
percentage of the principal of a holder who has failed to furnish the Registrar with a valid taxpayer 
identification number and a certification that the owner is not subject to backup withholding.  Owners who 
wish to avoid the application of those provisions should submit a completed IRS Form W-9 when presenting 
their certificates for payment.  If you request payment of principal and/or interest via wire transfer, please be 
advised there is a $25.00 fee that will be deducted from your payment. 

By: Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A. 
as Paying Agent/Registrar 

Dated: ______________, ________ 
The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be responsible for selection or use of the Cusip Number, nor is any representation 
made as to their correctness in the redemption notice or on any Bond(s).  They are included solely for the convenience of 
the holders. 

*DENOTES FULL CALL OF CUSIP 

____________________ 

This notice is to be given to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., the registrar and fiscal agent for the Bonds, at least 35 
days prior to December 1, 2016, the Redemption Date, with the direction to give notice to the registered owner of the 
Bonds, the Depository Trust Company (DTC), at least 30 days before the Redemption Date in accordance with DTC's 
Operational Arrangements and to the MSRB electronically through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) 
System website at www.emma.msrb.org. 

14.4.b

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
  (

19
35

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

P
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

A
)

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


 

QB\41418130.1  

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

RESOLUTION AWARDING THE SALE OF 
$4,185,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2016B 

WHEREAS, on August 10, 2016, the Common Council of the City of Merrill, Lincoln 
County, Wisconsin (the "City") adopted initial resolutions authorizing the issuance of general 
obligation bonds in the following amounts and for the following public purposes: $1,640,000 for 
street improvement projects; $160,000 for improvements to parks and public grounds; $165,000 
for the acquisition of equipment for fire protection; $80,000 for airport projects; $40,000 for a 
building for the housing of machinery and equipment; and $650,000 for providing financial 
assistance to community development projects under Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats., in the City's 
Tax Incremental Districts (collectively, the "Project Initial Resolutions"); and $1,450,000 for 
refunding obligations of the City, including interest on them (collectively with the Project Initial 
Resolutions, the "Initial Resolutions"); 

WHEREAS, the obligations of the City to be refunded are the General Obligation 
Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2006B, dated December 28, 2006 (the "2006B Bonds") and the 
two State Trust Fund Loans designed as Build America Bonds, dated December 21, 2010 
(collectively, the "Loans") and (collectively with the 2006B Bonds, the "Refunded Obligations") 
(hereinafter the refinancing of the Refunded Obligations shall be referred to as the "Refunding"); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.05, Wisconsin Statutes, within 15 
days following the adoption of the Project Initial Resolutions, the City Clerk caused a notice to 
electors to be published stating the purpose and maximum principal amount of the bond issues 
authorized by the Project Initial Resolutions and describing the opportunity and procedure for 
submitting a petition requesting a referendum on the bond issues authorized by the Project Initial 
Resolutions; 

WHEREAS, no petition for referendum was filed with the City Clerk, and the time to file 
such a petition has expired; 

WHEREAS, on August 10, 2016, the Common Council of the City also adopted a 
resolution providing that the general obligation bond issues authorized by the Initial Resolutions 
be combined, issued and sold as a single issue of bonds designated as "General Obligation 
Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B" (the "Bonds") for the purpose of paying the cost of the 
projects described in the Project Initial Resolutions (collectively, the "Project") and the 
Refunding; 

WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 
the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 
Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes; 

WHEREAS, the City has directed Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers") to take the steps 
necessary to sell the Bonds; 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -2- 
QB\41418130.1  

WHEREAS, Ehlers, in consultation with the officials of the City, prepared a Notice of 
Sale (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) 
setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Bonds and indicating that the Bonds 
would be offered for public sale on September 13, 2016; 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) caused a form of notice of the 
sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Notice of Sale to be distributed to potential 
bidders offering the Bonds for public sale on September 13, 2016; 

WHEREAS, the City has duly received bids for the Bonds as described on the Bid 
Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 
Tabulation");  

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 
the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 
requirements set forth in the Notice of Sale and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the 
City.  Ehlers has recommended that the City accept the Proposal.  A copy of said Proposal 
submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated 
herein by this reference; and 

[WHEREAS, the Common Council deems it to be necessary, desirable and in the best 

interest of the City that the Bonds be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $4,185,000.] 

[WHEREAS, the Common Council now deems it to be necessary, desirable and in the 
best interest of the City that the Bonds be issued in the aggregate principal amount of 
$_________ for the following purposes and in the following principal amounts:  $_________ for 
street improvement projects; $_________ for improvements to parks and public grounds; 
$_________ for the acquisition of equipment for fire protection; $_________ for airport projects; 
$_________ for a building for the housing of machinery and equipment; $_________ for 
providing financial assistance to community development projects under Section 66.1105, Wis. 
Stats., in the City's Tax Incremental Districts; and $_________ for refunding obligations of the 
City, including interest on them.] 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 

Section 1A.  Ratification of the Notice of Sale and Offering Materials.  The Common 
Council of the City hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Bonds set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto as and for the details of the Bonds.  The Notice of Sale and any other offering 
materials prepared and circulated by Ehlers are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.  All 
actions taken by officers of the City and Ehlers in connection with the preparation and 
distribution of the Notice of Sale, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and 
approved in all respects. 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -3- 
QB\41418130.1  

Section 1B.  Award of the Bonds.  The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the 
Bonds for the sum set forth on the Proposal, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, 
resulting in a true interest cost as set forth on the Proposal is hereby accepted.  The Mayor and 
City Clerk or other appropriate officers of the City are authorized and directed to execute an 
acceptance of the Proposal on behalf of the City.  The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall 
be retained by the City Treasurer until the closing of the bond issue, and any good faith deposits 
submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned.  The Bonds shall bear interest at 
the rates set forth on the Proposal. 

Section 2.  Terms of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be designated "General Obligation 
Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of 
$4,185,000; shall be dated October 11, 2016; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates 
per annum and mature on October 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth 
on the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year 
commencing on April 1, 2017.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of 
twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board.  The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Bonds is set 
forth on the Debt Service Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by 
this reference (the "Schedule"). 

Section 2A.  Designation of Maturities.  For purposes of State law, the Bonds are 
designated as being issued to pay and discharge the debts incurred by the City through the 
issuance of the Refunded Obligations and the obligations refunded by the Refunded Obligations 
in the order in which those debts were incurred, so that the Bonds of the earliest maturities are 
considered to be issued to discharge the debts which were incurred first. 

Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds maturing on October 1, 2026 and 
thereafter shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on October 1, 
2025 or on any date thereafter.  Said Bonds shall be redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in 
part, from maturities selected by the City and within each maturity, by lot, at the principal 
amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.  [If the Proposal specifies that 
any of the Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption, the terms of such mandatory redemption 
are set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP and incorporated herein by this reference.  
Upon the optional redemption of any of the Bonds subject to mandatory redemption, the 
principal amount of such Bonds so redeemed shall be credited against the mandatory redemption 
payments established in Exhibit MRP for such Bonds in such manner as the City shall direct.] 

Section 4.  Form of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued in registered form and shall be 
executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -4- 
QB\41418130.1  

Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 

(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 
resources of the City are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of the 
taxable property of the City a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2016 through 2035 for 
the payments due in the years 2017 through 2036 in the amounts set forth on the Schedule.  

(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 
Bonds remains unpaid, the City shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 
obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 
the issuance of the Bonds, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the City 
and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time as other 
taxes of the City for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried onto the tax 
roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt Service Fund 
Account created below. 

(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 
from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Bonds when due, 
the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall 
be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 

Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 

(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 
treasury of the City, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and distinct 
from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 
issued by the City may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 
fund. 

Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 
designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for $4,185,000 General Obligation Corporate 
Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B, dated October 11, 2016" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and 
such account shall be maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Bonds is fully paid or 
otherwise extinguished.  The City Treasurer shall deposit in the Debt Service Fund Account (i) 
all accrued interest received by the City at the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds; (ii) 
any premium not used for the Refunding which may be received by the City above the par value 
of the Bonds and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the taxes herein levied and 
any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of and interest on the 
Bonds when due; (iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay principal of and 
interest on the Bonds when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified 
below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes. 
 

 
 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -5- 
QB\41418130.1  

(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 
Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Bonds 
canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 
invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 
payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 
and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Bonds may be used to 
reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the City, be invested by purchasing 
the Bonds as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or in permitted 
municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted 
Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  
Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform with the provisions 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any applicable Treasury 
Regulations (the "Regulations"). 
 

(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Bonds have been paid in full and 
canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 
Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the 
Common Council directs otherwise. 
 

Section 7.  Proceeds of the Bonds; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 
the Bonds (the "Bond Proceeds") (other than any premium not used for the Refunding and 
accrued interest which must be paid at the time of the delivery of the Bonds into the Debt Service 
Fund Account created above) shall be deposited into a special fund separate and distinct from all 
other funds of the City and disbursed solely for the purposes for which borrowed or for the 
payment of the principal of and the interest on the Bonds.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund 
may be temporarily invested in Permitted Investments.  Any monies, including any income from 
Permitted Investments, remaining in the Borrowed Money Fund after the purposes for which the 
Bonds have been issued have been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed 
and which obviously thereafter cannot be needed for such purposes shall be deposited in the 
Debt Service Fund Account. 

Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 
Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 
the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 
Regulations and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, 
shall certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the 
date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Bonds 
are not "arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 

Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The City represents and covenants 
that the projects financed by the Bonds and by the Refunded Obligations and the ownership, 
management and use of the projects will not cause the Bonds or the Refunded Obligations to be 
"private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.  The City further 
covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the extent necessary to maintain 
the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds including, if applicable, the rebate 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -6- 
QB\41418130.1  

requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The City further covenants that it will not take any 
action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or omission of any action within its control 
(including, without limitation, making or permitting any use of the proceeds of the Bonds) if 
taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would cause any of the Bonds to be an 
arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of the Code or would otherwise 
cause interest on the Bonds to be included in the gross income of the recipients thereof for 
federal income tax purposes.  The City Clerk or other officer of the City charged with the 
responsibility of issuing the Bonds shall provide an appropriate certificate of the City certifying 
that the City can and covenanting that it will comply with the provisions of the Code and 
Regulations. 
 

(b) The City also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 
restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 
Bonds provided that in meeting such requirements the City will do so only to the extent 
consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Bonds and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 
to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 
 

Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Bonds are hereby 
designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 
relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 
purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations. 
 

Section 11.  Execution of the Bonds; Closing; Professional Services.  The Bonds shall be 
issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 
with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the Purchaser 
upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 
delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Bonds 
may be imprinted on the Bonds in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City 
has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Bonds, at least one of the signatures 
appearing on each Bond shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 
whose signatures appear on the Bonds shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 
signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 
had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 
directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Bonds and all such documents, certificates and 
acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City 
hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and 
contracts in conjunction with the Bonds, including but not limited to agreements and contracts 
for legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation 
services.  Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the 
Bonds is hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 

Section 12.  Payment of the Bonds; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 
Bonds shall be paid by Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, Minnesota, which is hereby 
appointed as the City's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.10(2), 
Wisconsin Statutes (the "Fiscal Agent").  The Fiscal Agency Agreement between the City and 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -7- 
QB\41418130.1  

the Fiscal Agent shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit F and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 
 

Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Bonds.  The City shall cause books 
for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person 
in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 
thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be made 
only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 
and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Any Bond may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Bond at 
the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 
transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 
transferees a new Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and 
the Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No 
registration shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Bond surrendered for 
transfer. 

The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
authorized to execute any new Bond or Bonds necessary to effect any such transfer. 

Section 14.  Record Date.  The fifteenth day of each calendar month next preceding each 
interest payment date shall be the record date for the Bonds (the "Record Date").  Payment of 
interest on the Bonds on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 
Bonds as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 
Date. 

Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 
order to make the Bonds eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 
New York, New York ("DTC"), the City agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 
Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously executed on behalf of the City and on file in 
the City Clerk's office. 

Section 16.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The City authorizes the Purchaser to 
forward the amount of the proceeds of the Bonds allocable to the payment of issuance expenses 
to KleinBank, Chaska, Minnesota at Closing for further distribution as directed by Ehlers. 

Section 17.  Official Statement.  The Common Council hereby approves the Preliminary 
Official Statement with respect to the Bonds and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as 
"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All 
actions taken by officers of the City in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary 
Official Statement and any addenda to it are hereby ratified and approved.  In connection with 
the Closing, the appropriate City official shall certify the Preliminary Official Statement and any 
addenda.  The City Clerk shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any 
addenda to be distributed to the Purchaser. 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -8- 
QB\41418130.1  

Section 18.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants 
and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, to enter into a written undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial 
information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events in 
accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the Bonds or 
by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and the 
Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific performance of 
the obligations thereunder and any failure by the City to comply with the provisions of the 
Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds). 

To the extent required under the Rule, the Mayor and City Clerk, or other officer of the 
City charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, shall provide a Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and terms of the 
City's Undertaking. 

Section 19.  Redemption of the 2006B Bonds.  The 2006B Bonds are hereby called for 
prior payment and redemption on December 1, 2016 at a price of par plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. 

The City hereby directs the City Clerk to work with Ehlers to cause timely notice of 
redemption, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit G and incorporated herein by 
this reference (the "Notice"), to be provided at the times, to the parties and in the manner set 
forth on the Notice.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers and agents of the City to 
effectuate the redemption of the 2006B Bonds are hereby ratified and approved. 

Section 20.  Redemption of the Loans.  The Loans are hereby called for prior payment 
and redemption on January 3, 2017 at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

The City hereby directs the City Clerk to work with Ehlers to cause timely notice of 
redemption to be sent to the Board of Commissioners of Public Lands by registered or certified 
mail at least 30 days prior to the date of redemption of the Loan.  All actions heretofore taken by 
the officers and agents of the City to effectuate the redemption of the Loans is hereby ratified 
and approved. 

Section 21.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 
proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 
statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 
Bonds in the Record Book. 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -9- 
QB\41418130.1  

 

Section 22.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 
insurance with respect to the Bonds, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 
agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 
acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 
of Bond proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 
of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Bonds by the bond insurer and 
notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 
the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Bond provided herein. 

Section 23.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 
rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 
hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 
event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 

 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

EXHIBIT A 

Notice of Sale 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

EXHIBIT B 
 

Bid Tabulation 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

EXHIBIT C 
 

Winning Bid 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

 

EXHIBIT D-1 

Pricing Summary 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

(See Attached)

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

 
EXHIBIT D-2 

Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

(See Attached)

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

[EXHIBIT MRP 

Mandatory Redemption Provision 

The Bonds due on October 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject 
to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 
price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 
interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 
in amounts sufficient to redeem on October 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 
specified below: 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,         

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity)] 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

 
EXHIBIT E 

 
(Form of Bond) 

 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 

LINCOLN COUNTY 
NO. R-___ CITY OF MERRILL $_______ 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BOND, SERIES 2016B  
 
 

MATURITY DATE:  ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE:    CUSIP: 

October 1, _____ October 11, 2016 ____% ______ 

DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($__________) 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 
hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its Nominee Name 
(the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified 
above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per 
annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior 
to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year 
commencing on April 1, 2017 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  Both the 
principal of and interest on this Bond are payable to the registered owner in lawful money of the 
United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire transfer to the 
Depository in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register maintained by Bond 
Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, Minnesota (the "Fiscal Agent") or any successor thereto at 
the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding the semi-annual 
interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Bond is payable as to principal upon 
presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 

For the prompt payment of this Bond together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for 
the levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the City are 
hereby irrevocably pledged. 

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds aggregating the principal amount of $4,185,000, 
all of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and 
redemption provision, issued by the City pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.04, Wisconsin 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -2- 
QB\41418130.1  

Statutes, for the following public purposes:  $1,640,000 for street improvement projects; 
$160,000 for improvements to parks and public grounds; $165,000 for the acquisition of 
equipment for fire protection; $80,000 for airport projects; $40,000 for a building for the housing 
of machinery and equipment; $650,000 for providing financial assistance to community 
development projects under Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats., in the City's Tax Incremental Districts; 
and $1,450,000 for refunding obligations of the City, all as authorized by resolutions of the 
Common Council duly adopted by said governing body at meetings held on August 10, 2016 and 
September 13, 2016.  Said resolutions are recorded in the official minutes of the Common 
Council for said dates.   

The Bonds maturing on October 1, 2026 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity, at the option of the City, on October 1, 2025 or on any date thereafter.  Said Bonds are 
redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the City and within 
each maturity, by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

[The Bonds maturing in the years _______, _______ and ______ are subject to 
mandatory redemption by lot as provided in the resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds at the 
redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption and without premium.] 

In the event the Bonds are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Bonds are in 
book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 
registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 
transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 
thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 
Bonds of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed 
will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:  the 
designation, date and maturities of the Bonds called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the 
date of redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to 
have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Bonds shall 
cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 
available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 
that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be 
outstanding. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 
exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Bond have been done, 
have existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of 
the City, including this Bond and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 
limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 
irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Bond, together with the interest thereon, 
when and as payable. 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -3- 
QB\41418130.1  

This Bond has been designated by the Common Council as a "qualified tax-exempt 
obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended. 

This Bond is transferable only upon the books of the City kept for that purpose at the 
office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 
depository for the Bonds, and the City appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Bond 
to the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together 
with a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal 
Agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new 
fully registered Bond in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new 
depository in exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the 
City for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
registration.  The Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Bonds (i) after the 
Record Date, (ii) during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of 
notice of any proposed redemption of the Bonds, or (iii) with respect to any particular Bond, 
after such Bond has been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and City may treat and 
consider the Depository in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for 
the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof 
and interest due hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Bonds are issuable solely as 
negotiable, fully-registered Bonds without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof. 

 This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 
Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent. 
 

No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 
impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 
default hereunder. 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -4- 
QB\41418130.1  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, by its 
governing body, has caused this Bond to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 
or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 

CITY OF MERRILL, 
LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

By: ______________________________ 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 

By: ______________________________ 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -5- 
QB\41418130.1  

 
 

 

Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 
 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 This Bond is one of the Bonds of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned resolution 
of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin. 
 

BOND TRUST SERVICES    
  CORPORATION, 

ROSEVILLE, MINNESOTA 
 
 
 

By____________________________ 
        Authorized Signatory 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

 -6- 
QB\41418130.1  

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Bond on 
the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:  _____________________ 

Signature Guaranteed: 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 
(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 
or Securities Firm) 

NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 
name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 
appears upon the face of the within Bond in every 
particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever. 

____________________________ 
(Authorized Officer)

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

 
EXHIBIT F 

 
Fiscal Agency Agreement 

 
 

 
(See Attached) 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

  QB\41418130.1  
 

 

FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 11th day of October, 2016 between the City of 

Merrill, Wisconsin ("Municipality"), and Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, 
Minnesota, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Bank" or "Fiscal Agent"), a 
corporation duly organized and existing as a limited purpose trust company under the laws of the 
State of Minnesota, Section 48A.03 and authorized by the Department of Financial Institutions 
of the State of Wisconsin to operate in Wisconsin pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 223.12. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Municipality has duly authorized the issuance of its $4,185,000 General 
Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B, dated October 11, 2016 (the "Obligations") 
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes and the resolutions adopted by 
the Municipality on August 10, 2016 and September 13, 2016 (collectively, the "Resolution"); 
and  

WHEREAS, the Municipality is issuing the Obligations in registered form pursuant to 
Section 149 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and applicable Treasury 
Regulations promulgated thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Resolution and Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes the 
Municipality has authorized the appointment of the Fiscal Agent as agent for the Municipality 
for any or all of the following responsibilities:  payment of principal and interest on, registering, 
transferring and authenticating the Obligations as well as other applicable responsibilities 
permitted by Section 67.10(2), Wisconsin Statutes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Municipality and the Fiscal Agent hereby agree as follows: 

I.  APPOINTMENT 

The Fiscal Agent is hereby appointed agent for the Municipality with respect to the 
Obligations for the purpose of performing such of the responsibilities stated in Section 67.10(2), 
Wisconsin Statutes, as are delegated herein or as may be otherwise specifically delegated in 
writing to the Fiscal Agent by the Municipality. 

II.  INVESTMENT RESPONSIBILITY 

The Fiscal Agent shall not be under any obligation to invest funds held for the payment 
of interest or principal on the Obligations. 

III.  PAYMENTS 

At least one business day before each interest payment date (commencing with the 
interest payment date of April 1, 2017 and continuing thereafter until the principal of and interest

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

-2- 
  QB\41418130.1  
 

on the Obligations should have been fully paid or prepaid in accordance with their terms) the 
Municipality shall pay to the Fiscal Agent, in good funds immediately available to the Fiscal 
Agent on the interest payment date, a sum equal to the amount payable as principal of, premium, 
if any, and interest on the Obligations on such interest payment date.  Said interest and/or 
principal payment dates and amounts are outlined on Schedule A which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

IV.  CANCELLATION 

In every case of the surrender of any Obligation for the purpose of payment, the Fiscal 
Agent shall cancel and destroy the same and deliver to the Municipality a certificate regarding 
such cancellation.  The Fiscal Agent shall be permitted to microfilm or otherwise photocopy and 
record said Obligations. 

V.  REGISTRATION BOOK 

The Fiscal Agent shall maintain in the name of the Municipality a Registration Book 
containing the names and addresses of all owners of the Obligations and the following 
information as to each Obligation:  its number, date, purpose, amount, rate of interest and when 
payable.  The Fiscal Agent shall keep confidential said information in accordance with 
applicable banking and governmental regulations. 

VI.  INTEREST PAYMENT 

Payment of each installment of interest on each Obligation shall be made to the registered 
owner of such Obligation whose name shall appear on the Registration Book at the close of 
business on the 15th day of the calendar month next preceding the interest payment date and shall 
be paid by check or draft of the Fiscal Agent mailed to such registered owner at his address as it 
appears in such Registration Book or at such other address as may be furnished in writing by 
such registered owner to the Fiscal Agent. 

VII.  PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND NOTICE OF REDEMPTION 

(a) Principal Payments.  Principal shall be paid to the registered owner of an 
Obligation upon surrender of the Obligation on or after its maturity or redemption date. 

 Term Bonds [The Obligations due on October 1, 20__ and October 1, 20__ (the "Term 
Bonds") are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot at a redemption price equal 
to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to 
the date of redemption, from deposits which are required to be made in amounts sufficient to 
redeem on October 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds specified on the 
attached Schedule MRP.  

 The Municipality hereby directs and the Fiscal Agent hereby agrees to select the Term 
Bonds to be redeemed on the dates set forth above and to give notice of such redemption as set 
forth in substantially the form attached hereto as Schedule B by registered or certified mail, 
facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic transmission or in any other 
manner required by The Depository Trust Company at least thirty (30) days but not more than 
sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owner of each Obligation 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

-3- 
  QB\41418130.1  
 

selected to be redeemed, in whole or in part, at the address shown on the registration books as of 
the Record Date. 

The Municipality, in accordance with Section III hereof, shall make payments sufficient 
for the Fiscal Agent to pay the amounts due on the Term Bonds subject to mandatory 
redemption.] 

(b) Official Notice of Redemption.  In the event the Municipality exercises its option 
to redeem any of the Obligations, the Municipality shall, at least 35 days prior to the redemption 
date, direct the Fiscal Agent to give official notice of such redemption by sending an official 
notice thereof by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, 
electronic transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company at 
least 30 days but not more than 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered 
owner of each Obligation to be redeemed in whole or in part at the address shown in the 
Registration Book.  Such official notice of redemption shall be dated and shall state (i) the 
redemption date and price; (ii) an identification of the Obligations to be redeemed, including the 
date of original issue of the Obligations; (iii) that on the redemption date the redemption price 
will become due and payable upon each such Obligation or portion thereof called for 
redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after said date; and (iv) the 
place where such Obligations are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, which 
place of payment shall be the principal office of the Fiscal Agent.  Term Bonds [Official notice 
of the redemption of Obligations subject to mandatory redemption shall be given in the same 
manner.] 

(c) Additional Notice of Redemption.  In addition to the official notice of redemption 
provided in (b) above, further notice of any redemption shall be given by the Fiscal Agent on 
behalf of the Municipality to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and The Depository 
Trust Company of New York, New York but neither a defect in this additional notice nor any 
failure to give all or any portion of such additional notice shall in any manner defeat the 
effectiveness of a call for redemption. 

Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall be sent at least 30 days before 
the redemption date by registered or certified mail, overnight delivery service, facsimile 
transmission or email transmission and shall contain the information required above for an 
official notice of redemption. 

(d) Redemption of Obligations.  The Obligations to be redeemed Term Bonds [at the 

option of the Municipality] shall be selected by the Municipality and, within any maturity, shall 

be selected by lot by the Depository described in Section VIII hereof.  Term Bonds [Obligations 

subject to mandatory redemption shall be selected as described in (a) above.]  The Obligations or 
portions of Obligations to be redeemed shall, on the redemption dates, become due and payable 
at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date such Obligations or 
portions of Obligations shall cease to bear interest.  Upon surrender of such Obligations for 
redemption in accordance with the official notice of redemption, such Obligations shall be paid 
by the Fiscal Agent at the redemption price.  Installments of interest due on or prior to the 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

-4- 
  QB\41418130.1  
 

redemption date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest.  Upon surrender for 
any partial redemption of any Obligation, there shall be prepared for the registered owner a new 
Obligation or Obligations of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal.  Each 
check or other transfer of funds issued in payment of the redemption price of Obligations being 
redeemed shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Obligations being 
redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other transfer. 

VIII.  UTILIZATION OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY 

The Depository Trust Company's Book-Entry-Only System is to be utilized for the 
Obligations.  The Fiscal Agent, as agent for the Municipality, agrees to comply with the 
provisions of The Depository Trust Company's Operational Arrangements, as they may be 
amended from time to time referenced in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations executed 
by the Municipality.  The provisions of the Operational Arrangements and this Section VIII 
supersede and control any and all representations in this Agreement. 

IX.  OBLIGATION TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE 

The Fiscal Agent shall transfer Obligations upon presentation of a written assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or by such owner's duly authorized representative.  Upon 
such a transfer, new registered Obligation(s) of the same maturity, in authorized denomination or 
denominations in the same aggregate principal amount for each maturity shall be issued to the 
transferee in exchange therefor, and the name of such transferee shall be entered as the new 
registered owner in the Registration Book.  No Obligation may be registered to bearer.  The 
Fiscal Agent may exchange Obligations of the issue for a like aggregate principal amount of 
Obligations of the same maturity in authorized whole multiples of $5,000. 

The Obligations shall be numbered R-1 and upward.  Upon any transfer or exchange, the 
Obligation or Obligations issued shall bear the next highest consecutive unused number or 
numbers. 

The Municipality shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the appropriate officers of the 
Municipality are authorized to execute any new Obligation or Obligations necessary to effect any 
such transfer. 

X.  AUTHENTICATION, IF REQUIRED 

The Fiscal Agent shall sign and date the Certificate of Authentication, if any, on each 
Obligation on the date of delivery, transfer or exchange of such Obligation.  The Fiscal Agent 
shall distribute and/or retain for safekeeping the Obligations in accordance with the direction of 
the registered owners thereof. 

XI.  STATEMENTS 

The Fiscal Agent shall furnish the Municipality with an accounting of interest and funds 
upon reasonable request. 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

-5- 
  QB\41418130.1  
 

XII.  FEES 

The Municipality agrees to pay the Fiscal Agent fees for its services hereunder in the 
amounts set forth on Schedule [B/C] hereto. 

XIII.  MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Nonpresentment of Checks.  In the event the check or draft mailed by the Fiscal 
Agent to the registered owner is not presented for payment within five years of its date, then the 
monies representing such nonpayment shall be returned to the Municipality or to such board, 
officer or body as may then be entitled by law to receive the same together with the name of the 
registered owner of the Obligation and the last mailing address of record and the Fiscal Agent 
shall no longer be responsible for the same. 

(b) Resignation and Removal; Successor Fiscal Agent.  (i) Fiscal Agent may at any 
time resign by giving not less than 60 days written notice to Municipality.  Upon receiving such 
notice of resignation, Municipality shall promptly appoint a successor fiscal agent by an 
instrument in writing executed by order of its governing body.  If no successor fiscal agent shall 
have been so appointed and have accepted appointment within 60 days after such notice of 
resignation, the resigning fiscal agent may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the 
appointment of a successor fiscal agent.  Such court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as 
it may deem proper and prescribes, appoint a successor fiscal agent.  The resignation of the fiscal 
agent shall take effect only upon appointment of a successor fiscal agent and such successor 
fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment. 

(ii)  The Fiscal Agent may also be removed by the Municipality at any time upon 
not less than 60 days' written notice.  Such removal shall take effect upon the appointment of a 
successor fiscal agent and such successor fiscal agent's acceptance of such appointment. 

(iii)  Any successor fiscal agent shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to 
Municipality and to its predecessor fiscal agent an instrument accepting such appointment 
hereunder, and thereupon the resignation or removal of the predecessor fiscal agent shall become 
effective and such successor fiscal agent, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall 
become vested with all the rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor, with 
like effect as if originally named as fiscal agent herein; but nevertheless, on written request of 
Municipality, or on the request of the successor, the fiscal agent ceasing to act shall execute and 
deliver an instrument transferring to such successor fiscal agent, all the rights, powers, and trusts 
of the fiscal agent so ceasing to act.  Upon the request of any such successor fiscal agent, 
Municipality shall execute any and all instruments in writing for more fully and certainly vesting 
in and confirming to such successor fiscal agent all such rights, powers and duties.  Any 
predecessor fiscal agent shall pay over to its successor fiscal agent any funds of the Municipality. 

(iv)  Any corporation, association or agency into which the Fiscal Agent may be 
converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or transfer its 
corporate trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or 
association resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it 
is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor fiscal agent under this Agreement and 
vested with all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities and privileges and all other matters as 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

-6- 
  QB\41418130.1  
 

was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further act, deed or 
conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding. 

(v)  Any successor fiscal agent shall be qualified pursuant to Sec. 67.10(2), 
Wisconsin Statutes, as amended. 

(c) Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the payment in 
full of all of the principal and interest on the Obligations to the registered owners of the 
Obligations or (ii) five years after (aa) the last principal payment on the Obligations is due 
(whether by maturity or earlier redemption) or (bb) the Municipality's responsibilities for 
payment of the Obligations are fully discharged, whichever is later.  The parties realize that any 
funds hereunder as shall remain upon termination shall, except as may otherwise by law, be 
turned over to the Municipality after deduction of any unpaid fees and disbursements of Fiscal 
Agent or, if required by law, to such officer, board or body as may then be entitled by law to 
receive the same.  Termination of this Agreement shall not, of itself, have any effect on 
Municipality's obligation to pay the outstanding Obligations in full in accordance with the terms 
thereof. 

 
 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

-7- 
  QB\41418130.1  
 

(d)  Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement, being duly 
authorized so to do, each in the manner most appropriate to it, on the date first above written. 

CITY OF MERRILL, LINCOLN 
COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

By _________________________ 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 

_________________________ 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

BOND TRUST SERVICES 
CORPORATION, ROSEVILLE, 
MINNESOTA 
  Fiscal Agent 

(SEAL) By__________________________ 
Paying Agent Administrator 

Attest________________________ 
Paying Agent Administrator 

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

SCHEDULE A 

Debt Service Schedule 
$4,185,000 General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B 

of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
dated October 11, 2016 

(SEE ATTACHED) 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

[SCHEDULE MRP 

Mandatory Redemption Provision 

The Obligations due on October 1, ____, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are 
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a 
redemption price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed 
plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are 
required to be made in amounts sufficient to redeem on October 1 of each year the respective 
amount of Term Bonds specified below: 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on October 1,     

 Redemption 
       Date       Amount 
 ____ $______ 
 ____   ______ 
 ____   ______(maturity)]

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

[SCHEDULE B 

NOTICE OF MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION* 

City of Merrill, Wisconsin 
General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bonds, Series 2016B 

Dated October 11, 2016 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a portion of the Bonds of the above-referenced issue 
which mature on October 1, 20___ shall be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on 
October 1 of the year set forth below, in the amount set forth below, at a redemption price equal 
to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. 

Redemption Date Principal Amount  CUSIP Number 

 October 1, ____ $_______ ____________ 

 Such portion of the Bonds will cease to bear interest on the redemption date set forth 
above. 

BY THE ORDER OF THE 
COMMON COUNCIL 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 

Dated: __________________ 
 
 
 

                     
* To be provided by registered or certified mail, facsimile transmission, overnight express delivery, electronic 

transmission or in any other manner required by The Depository Trust Company, to The Depository Trust 
Company, Attn:  Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not 
less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the call date.  At least thirty (30) days prior to 
the call date notice shall also be filed electronically with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through 

the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.] 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


 

QB\41418130.1  

SCHEDULE [B/C] 
 
 
 

(SEE ATTACHED) 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)



 

QB\41418130.1  

 
EXHIBIT G 

NOTICE OF FULL CALL* 

CITY OF MERRILL 
LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

GENERAL OBLIGATION CORPORATE PURPOSE BONDS, SERIES 2006B 
DATED DECEMBER 28, 2006 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Bonds of the above-referenced issue which mature on 

the dates and in the amounts; bear interest at the rates; and have CUSIP Nos. as set forth below have 
been called for prior payment on December 1, 2016 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the 
principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment: 

Maturity Date Principal Amount Interest Rate CUSIP No. 

12/01/17 $120,000      3.90% 590230NK0 
12/01/18 125,000 3.95 590230NL8 
12/01/19   95,000 4.00 590230NM6 
12/01/20   95,000 4.05 590230NN4 
12/01/22 145,000 4.10 590230NQ7 
12/01/24 155,000 4.20 590230NS3 
12/01/26 155,000 4.30 590230NU8 

 
Upon presentation and surrender of said Bonds to Bond Trust Services Corporation, Roseville, 
Minnesota, the registrar and fiscal agent for said Bonds, the registered owners thereof will be paid the 
principal amount of the Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment. 

Said Bonds will cease to bear interest on December 1, 2016. 

By Order of the 
Common Council 
City of Merrill 
City Clerk 

Dated ________________________ 
_____________ 

 
 
* To be provided to Bond Trust Services Corporation at least thirty-five (35) days prior to December 1, 2016.  The registrar and 

fiscal agent shall be directed to give notice of such prepayment by registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile 
transmission or electronic transmission to The Depository Trust Company, Attn:  Supervisor, Call Notification Department, 570 
Washington Blvd., Jersey City, NJ  07310, not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to December 1, 2016 and to 
the MSRB electronically through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) System website at www.emma.msrb.org.   

 

14.5.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 G
O

P
C

P
B

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

B
  (

19
36

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

C
P

B
 S

er
ie

s 
20

16
B

)

http://www.emma.msrb.org/


 

QB\41409489.1  

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $1,080,000 
GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTES AND THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 

$1,080,000 TAXABLE NOTE ANTICIPATION NOTE IN ANTICIPATION THEREOF 

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City") is presently in 
need of the sum of $1,080,000 for public purposes, including financing community development 
projects in the City's Tax Incremental Districts (the "Project"); 

WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that the Project is within 
the City's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 
Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes; 

WHEREAS, cities are authorized by the provisions of Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes, to 
borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public purposes; 

WHEREAS, it is the finding of the Common Council that it is necessary, desirable and in 
the best interest of the City to authorize the issuance of and covenant to issue general obligation 
promissory notes (the "Securities") to provide permanent financing for the Project; 

WHEREAS, the Securities have not yet been issued or sold; 

WHEREAS, cities are authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(1)(b), Wisconsin 
Statutes, to issue note anticipation notes in anticipation of receiving the proceeds from the 
issuance and sale of the Securities; 

WHEREAS, it is the finding of the Common Council that it is necessary, desirable and in 
the best interest of the City to authorize the issuance and sale of a note anticipation note pursuant 
to Section 67.12(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes (the "Note"), in anticipation of receiving the proceeds 
from the issuance and sale of the Securities, to provide interim financing to pay the cost of the 
Project;  
 WHEREAS, due to certain provisions contained in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, it is necessary to issue the Note on a taxable rather than tax-exempt basis; 

WHEREAS, the City has directed Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers") to take the steps 
necessary to sell the Note to pay the cost of the Project; 

WHEREAS, Ehlers, in consultation with the officials of the City, prepared a Term Sheet 
(a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) 
setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the note anticipation note and indicating 
that the Note would be offered for sale on September 13, 2016; 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

 -2-  
QB\41409489.1  

WHEREAS, the City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) caused the Term Sheet to be 
distributed to potential bidders offering the Note for sale on September 13, 2016; 

WHEREAS, the City has duly received bids for the Note as described on the Bid 
Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 
Tabulation"); and 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 
the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 
requirements set forth in the Term Sheet and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the City.  
Ehlers has recommended that the City accept the Proposal.  A copy of said Proposal submitted 
by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City that: 

Section 1A.  Authorization of Securities.  The City hereby authorizes the issuance and 
declares its intention and covenants to issue the Securities pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
67, Wisconsin Statutes, in an amount sufficient to retire any outstanding note anticipation notes 
issued for the purpose of paying the cost of the Project.  There is hereby levied on all the taxable 
property in the City a direct, annual, irrepealable tax sufficient to pay the interest on said 
Securities as it becomes due, and also to pay and discharge the principal thereof. 

Section 1B.  Ratification of the Term Sheet and Offering Materials.  The Common 
Council of the City hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Note set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto as and for the details of the Note.  The Term Sheet and any other offering 
materials prepared and circulated by Ehlers are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.  All 
actions taken by officers of the City and Ehlers in connection with the preparation and 
distribution of the Term Sheet, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and approved 
in all respects. 

Section 2.  Award of the Note.  The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the 
Note for the sum set forth on the Proposal, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, resulting 
in a true interest cost as set forth on the Proposal is hereby accepted.  The Mayor and City Clerk 
or other appropriate officers of the City are authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of 
the Proposal on behalf of the City.  The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be retained by 
the City Treasurer until the closing of the note issue, and any good faith deposits submitted by 
unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned.  The Note shall bear interest at the rate set forth 
on the Proposal. 

Section 3.  Terms of the Note.  The Note shall be designated "Taxable Note Anticipation 
Note, Series 2016C"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $1,080,000; shall be 
dated October 6, 2016; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rate and 
mature on October 1, 2021 as set forth on the schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D and 
incorporated herein by this reference (the "Schedule").  Interest is payable annually on October 1 
of each year commencing on October 1, 2017.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

 -3-  
QB\41409489.1  

360-day year of twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 

Section 4.  Redemption Provisions.  The Note shall be subject to redemption prior to 
maturity, at the option of the City, on any date.  Said Note shall be redeemable as a whole or in 
part, and if in part, by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 
redemption. 

Section 5.  Form of the Note.  The Note shall be issued in registered form and shall be 
executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 
herein by this reference. 

Section 6.  Security.  The Note shall in no event be a general obligation of the City and 
do not constitute an indebtedness of the City nor a charge against its general credit or taxing 
power.  No lien is created upon the Project or any other property of the City as a result of the 
issuance of the Note.  The Note shall be payable only from (a) any proceeds of the Note set aside 
for payment of interest on the Note as it becomes due and (b) proceeds to be derived from the 
issuance and sale of the Securities, which proceeds are hereby declared to constitute a special 
trust fund, hereby created and established, to be held by the City Clerk and expended solely for 
the payment of the principal of and interest on the Note until paid.  The City hereby agrees that, 
in the event such monies are not sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Note when 
due, if necessary, the City will pay such deficiency out of its annual general tax levy or other 
available funds of the City; provided, however, that such payment shall be subject to annual 
budgetary appropriations therefor and any applicable levy limits; and provided further, that 
neither this Resolution nor any such payment shall be construed as constituting an obligation of 
the City to make any such appropriation or any further payments. 

Section 7.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 

(A) Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 
treasury of the City a separate and distinct fund account designated as the "Debt Service Fund 
Account for $1,080,000 Taxable Note Anticipation Note, Series 2016C, dated October 6, 2016" 
(the "Debt Service Fund Account"), and such account shall be maintained until the indebtedness 
evidenced by the Note is fully paid or otherwise extinguished.  The City Treasurer shall deposit 
in the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by the City at the time of 
delivery of and payment for the Note; (ii) any premium which may be received by the City above 
the par value of the Note and accrued interest thereon; (iii) any proceeds of the Note representing 
capitalized interest on the Note or other funds appropriated by the City for payment of interest on 
the Note, as needed to pay the interest on the Note when due; (iv) proceeds of the Securities (or 
other obligations of the City issued to pay principal of or interest on the Note); (v) tax increment 
revenues of tax increment districts which are appropriated for payment of the Note; (vi) such 
other sums, including tax monies, as may be necessary at any time to pay principal of and 
interest on the Note when due and which are appropriated by the Common Council for that 
purpose; and (vii) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified in Section 9 hereof. 

 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

 -4-  
QB\41409489.1  

(B) Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 
Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Note until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Note 
canceled; provided that such monies may be invested in permitted municipal investments under 
the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes ("Permitted Investments"), which investments 
shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service Fund Account.  Said account shall be used for the 
sole purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Note and shall be maintained for such 
purpose until the Note are fully paid or otherwise extinguished. 

(C) Remaining Monies.  When the Note has been paid in full and canceled, 
and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service Fund 
Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the City, unless the Common 
Council directs otherwise. 

Section 8.  Covenants of the City.  The City hereby covenants with the owners of the 
Note as follows: 

(A) It shall issue and sell the Securities as soon as practicable, as necessary to 
provide for payment of the Note;  

(B) It shall segregate the proceeds derived from the sale of the Securities into 
the special trust fund herein created and established and shall permit such special trust fund to be 
used for no purpose other than the payment of principal of and interest on the Note until paid.  
After the payment of principal of and interest on the Note in full, said special trust fund may be 
used for such other purposes as the Common Council may direct in accordance with law; and, 

(C) It shall maintain a debt limit capacity such that its combined outstanding 
principal amount of general obligation bonds or notes or certificates of indebtedness and the 
$1,080,000 authorized for the issuance of the Securities shall at no time exceed its constitutional 
debt limit. 

Section 9.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  All monies 
received by the City upon the delivery of the Note to the Purchaser thereof (other than any 
premium and accrued interest which must be paid at the time of the delivery of the Note into the 
Debt Service Fund Account created above) shall be deposited by the City Clerk into a special 
fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") which shall be maintained separate and distinct from all 
other funds of the City and shall be used for no purpose other than the purposes for which the 
Note is issued.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted 
Investments.  Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the 
Borrowed Money Fund after the purposes for which the Note has been issued have been 
accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously thereafter 
cannot be needed for such purposes, shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund Account created 
herein. 

 

 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

 -5-  
QB\41409489.1  

Section 10.  Execution of the Note; Closing; Professional Services.  The Note shall be 
issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the City by the manual or facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and City Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), sealed 
with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof and delivered to the Purchaser 
upon payment to the City of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of 
delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the Note may 
be imprinted on the Note in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the City has 
contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Note, at least one of the signatures appearing on 
each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers whose signatures 
appear on the Note shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such signatures shall, 
nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they had remained in 
office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and directed to do all acts 
and execute and deliver the Note and all such documents, certificates and acknowledgements as 
may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The City hereby authorizes the 
officers and agents of the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements and contracts in 
conjunction with the Note, including but not limited to agreements and contracts for legal, trust, 
fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate calculation services.  Any such 
contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance of the Note is hereby ratified 
and approved in all respects. 

Section 11.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 
Note shall be paid by the City Clerk or City Treasurer (the "Fiscal Agent").   

Section 12.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Note.  The City shall cause books for 
the registration and for the transfer of the Note to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The person in 
whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner 
thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be made 
only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy 
and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 
the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 
transfer, the Mayor and City Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee or 
transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and the 
Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No registration 
shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for transfer. 

The City shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 

Section 13.  Record Date.  The fifteenth day of each calendar month next preceding each 
interest payment date shall be the record date for the Note (the "Record Date").  Payment of 
interest on the Note on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 
Note as they appear on the registration book of the City at the close of business on the Record 
Date. 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

 -6-  
QB\41409489.1  

Section 14.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The City authorizes the Purchaser to 
forward the amount of the proceeds of the Note allocable to the payment of issuance expenses to 
KleinBank, Chaska, Minnesota at Closing for further distribution as directed by Ehlers. 

Section 15.  Continuing Disclosure.  The continuing disclosure requirements of SEC Rule 
15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934 are not applicable to the Note because the Purchaser will not resell or 
reoffer the Note.  The City has agreed to provide its annual financial statements directly to the 
Purchaser. 

Section 16.  Record Book.  The City Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 
proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 
statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 
Notes in the Record Book. 

Section 17.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 
insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the City are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to 
agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and which are 
acceptable to the Mayor and City Clerk including provisions regarding restrictions on investment 
of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond insurance policy, the rights 
of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes by the bond insurer and 
notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference required by the bond insurer to 
the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of Note provided herein. 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

 -7-  
QB\41409489.1  

 

Section 18.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 
rules or other actions of the Common Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 
hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 
event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 

Recommended by:  The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        William R. Bialecki 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Term Sheet 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  

EXHIBIT B 
 

Bid Tabulation 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  

EXHIBIT C 
 

Winning Bid 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  

EXHIBIT D 
 

Debt Service Schedule 
 
 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 
 

(See Attached) 
 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  

 
         

EXHIBITE 
 

(Form of Note) 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
    NUMBER                                       STATE OF WISCONSIN                                DOLLARS 

LINCOLN COUNTY 
CITY OF MERRILL 

TAXABLE NOTE ANTICIPATION NOTE, SERIES 2016C  

        R-1          $1,080,000 

     MATURITY DATE:               ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE:                   INTEREST RATE: 
 
 October 1, 2021                        October 6, 2016                                          _______% 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: _________ 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: ___________________________THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($____________) 
 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (the "City"), 
hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the registered owner identified above 
(or to registered assigns), on the maturity date identified above, the principal amount identified 
above, and to pay interest thereon at the rate of interest per annum identified above, all subject to 
the provisions set forth herein regarding redemption prior to maturity.  Interest shall be payable 
annually on October 1 of each year commencing on October 1, 2017 until the aforesaid principal 
amount is paid in full. 
 
 This Note is payable as to principal and interest upon presentation and surrender hereof at 
the office of the City Clerk or City Treasurer. 
 

This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $1,080,000, all 
of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, issued by the City pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 67.12(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes, in anticipation of the sale of general 
obligation promissory notes (the "Securities"), to provide interim financing to pay the cost of 
financing community development projects in the City's Tax Incremental Districts (the 
"Project"), all as authorized by resolutions of the Common Council duly adopted by said 
governing body at meetings held on August 10, 2016 and September 13, 2016 (the "Authorizing 
Resolution").  Said resolutions are recorded in the official minutes of the Common Council for 
said dates. 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  - 2 - 

 This Note shall be payable only from (a) any proceeds of the Note set aside for payment 
of interest on the Note as it becomes due, (b) proceeds to be derived from the issuance and sale 
of the Securities, which proceeds have been declared to constitute a special trust fund, to be held 
by the City Clerk and expended solely for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Note until paid and (c) any tax incremental revenues of tax increment districts which are 
appropriated by the Common Council for payment of principal of or interest on the Note.  The 
City has authorized and covenanted to issue the Securities pursuant to the Authorizing 
Resolution.  THE NOTE IS NOT A GENERAL OBLIGATION OF THE CITY AND 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY WITHIN THE 
MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION OR 
PROVISION NOR A CHARGE AGAINST ITS GENERAL CREDIT OR TAXING 
POWER.  NO LIEN IS CREATED UPON THE PROJECT OR ANY OTHER 
PROPERTY OF THE CITY AS A RESULT OF THE ISSUANCE OF THE NOTE. 
 

The Note is subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on any  
date.  Said Note is redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, by lot, at the principal amount 
thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

The Note shall cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date, provided that 
federal or other immediately available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit with 
the registered owner at that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Note shall no 
longer be deemed to be outstanding. 

 The Note is issuable solely as negotiable, fully-registered Note without coupons.  This 
Note may be exchanged at the office of the City Clerk or City Treasurer for a like aggregate 
principal amount. 
 
 This Note is transferable by a written assignment duly executed by the Registered Owner 
hereof or by such owner's duly authorized legal representative.  Upon such transfer a new 
registered Note, in authorized denomination or denominations and in the same aggregate 
principal amount, shall be issued to the transferee in exchange hereof.  
 
 The City may deem and treat the Registered Owner hereof as the absolute owner hereof 
for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of principal hereof, premium, if any, 
hereon and interest due hereon and for all other purposes, and the City shall not be affected by 
notice to the contrary. 
 
 It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 
exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 
existed and have been performed in due form and time.  The City has covenanted to issue and 
sell the Securities, the sale of which this Note anticipates, as soon as practicable and to set aside 
the proceeds of the Securities into a special trust fund for the payment of the principal of and 
interest on this Note. 
 
 No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 
impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 
default hereunder. 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  - 3 - 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin, by its 
governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 
facsimile signatures of its duly qualified Mayor and City Clerk; and to be sealed with its official 
or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 
 

CITY OF MERRILL, 
LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 
 

     By: ______________________________ 
William R. Bialecki 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 

  By: ______________________________ 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)



 

QB\41409489.1  - 4 - 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 (Name and Address of Assignee) 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 (Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 

the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
__________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on the books kept 
for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated: _____________________ 

Signature Guaranteed: 

____________________________   _____________________________ 
(e.g. Bank, Trust Company     (Registered Owner) 
or Securities Firm) 

 NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 
name of the registered owner as it appears upon 

__________________________ the face of the within Note in every particular, 
(Authorized Officer) without alteration or enlargement or any change 

whatever. 

*The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (IRC Section 149) requires that for interest on a 
municipal obligation with a term greater than one year to be exempt from federal income tax, the 
obligation must be issued and remain in registered form. 

Section 67.09, Wisconsin Statutes provides that the City Clerk when acting as the 
registrar shall record the registration of each note or bond in its bond registrar.  Therefore, if this 
Note is to be assigned, the City Clerk should be notified and a copy of this Assignment should be 
sent to the City Clerk for his or her records.  

 

14.6.a

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
zi

n
g

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
  (

19
38

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 T
N

A
N

 S
er

ie
s 

20
16

C
)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Invocation by Pastor Andy Perry, Bible Presbyterian Church
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 1886 : Minutes of August 10th, 2016 meeting
	a. Council Minutes - Aug 2016


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 1933 : Revenue and Expense Report
	a. Revenue & Expense Report

	2. 1934 : Fiscal Status - Fund 24 and TID 3
	a. Fiscal Status - Fund 24 & TID No. 3


	8. General agenda items:
	1. 1884 : Employee Years of Service Recognition
	1885 : Karen Vecchio recognition

	9. Health and Safety Committee:
	1. 1870 : Picnic License for Merrill Historical Society - Trivia Contest
	a. Picnic License-Merrill Historical Soc-Nov 5, 2016

	2. 1871 : Request for prorated license fee refund from Sawmill Brewing
	a. Sawmill Refund Request

	3. 1894 : Premises extension for Hockey Association - Pork in the Park
	a. Hockey Association request and map

	4. 1914 : Picnic License for St. Francis - Fall Festival
	a. St. Francis Fall Festival Picnic License Application


	10. Redevelopment Authority:
	1. 1937 : TIF funded interest subsidy program
	a. TIF-Funded Interest Subsidy


	11. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 1887 : Place reports on file
	a. Committee Reports


	12. Mayor's Appointments:
	1895 : Appoint Rose Akey to the Enrichment Center Committee
	a. Mayors Appointment List

	1896 : Appoint Nancy Kwiesielewicz to Housing Authority
	1898 : Appoint Gary Schwartz to Airport Commission
	a. Schwartz appointment


	13. Ordinances:
	1. 1940 : Ordinance related to off-street parking
	a. Ordinance on off-street parking in residential areas

	2. 1941 : Ordinance adding Mobile Food Vendors
	a. Ordinance to add Mobile Food Vendors

	3. 1943 : Ordinance to add licensing fees for Mobile Food Vendors
	a. Ordinance to add licensing fees for Mobile Food Vendors

	4. 1945 : Ordinance related to Mobile Food Vendors in Parks
	a. Ordinance related to Mobile Food Vendors in Parks

	5. 1947 : Ordinance creating Festival Grounds Committee
	a. Ordinance creating the Festival Grounds Committee


	14. Resolutions:
	1. 1820 : Resolution on grass and weeds fees
	a. Resolution on fees for grass and weeds

	2. 1821 : Resolution on snow and ice removal fees
	a. Resolution on fees for snow and ice

	3. 1882 : Cell Tower Resolution - S. Kyes Street
	a. Res Cell Tower 08 2016-TNH

	4. 1935 : Resolution on GOPN Series 2016A
	a. Council Borrowing Memo-2016-09-13
	b. Resolution authorizing GOPN Series 2016A

	5. 1936 : Resolution on GOCPB Series 2016B
	a. Resolution authorizing GOPCPB Series 2016B

	6. 1938 : Resolution on TNAN Series 2016C
	a. Resolution authorizing TNAN Series 2016C


	15. Mayor's Communications
	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · Council Minutes - Aug 2016
	7.1.a · Revenue & Expense Report
	7.2.a · Fiscal Status - Fund 24 & TID No. 3
	9.1.a · Picnic License-Merrill Historical Soc-Nov 5, 2016
	9.2.a · Sawmill Refund Request
	9.3.a · Hockey Association request and map
	9.4.a · St. Francis Fall Festival Picnic License Application
	10.1.a · TIF-Funded Interest Subsidy
	11.1.a · Committee Reports
	12.a · Mayors Appointment List
	12.a · Schwartz appointment
	13.1.a · Ordinance on off-street parking in residential areas
	13.2.a · Ordinance to add Mobile Food Vendors
	13.3.a · Ordinance to add licensing fees for Mobile Food Vendors
	13.4.a · Ordinance related to Mobile Food Vendors in Parks
	13.5.a · Ordinance creating the Festival Grounds Committee
	14.1.a · Resolution on fees for grass and weeds
	14.2.a · Resolution on fees for snow and ice
	14.3.a · Res Cell Tower 08 2016-TNH
	14.4.a · Council Borrowing Memo-2016-09-13
	14.4.b · Resolution authorizing GOPN Series 2016A
	14.5.a · Resolution authorizing GOPCPB Series 2016B
	14.6.a · Resolution authorizing TNAN Series 2016C


